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1 EXAMINER BROOKS: We'll c a l l at t h i s time 

2 Case Number 14480, a p p l i c a t i o n of Cimarex Energy Company 

3 f o r a nonstandard o i l spacing and p r o r a t i o n u n i t and 

4 compulsory p o o l i n g , Eddy County, New Mexico. C a l l f o r 

5 appearances. 

6 MR. LARSON: Gary Larson, of Hinkle, 

7 Hensley, Shanor & Ma r t i n , f o r Cimarex. I have three 

8 witnesses. 

9 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Ocean Munds-Dry, w i t h the 

10 law f i r m of Holland & Hart, .here representing Lynx 

11 Petroleum Consultants t h i s morning. I have one witness. 
j 

12 EXAMINER BROOKS: Would the witnesses 

13 please stand, i d e n t i f y themselves and be sworn? 

14 MR. SWAIN: I'm Michael Swain, a r e s e r v o i r 

15 engineer f o r Cimarex Energy. 

16 MR. CATALANO: Lee Catalano, g e o l o g i s t 

17 w i t h Cimarex Energy. 

18 MR. COMPTON: Mark Compton, landman f o r 

19 Cimarex Energy. 

2 0 MR. SCOTT: Larry Scott, president of Lynx 

21 Petroleum Consultants. 

22 EXAMINER BROOKS: Please swear the 

23 witnesses. 

24 (Four witnesses were sworn.) 

25 EXAMINER BROOKS: Thank you, Ms. Reporter. 
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1 I take i t t h i s i s going t o be opposed, since 

2 you have a witness. 

3 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Yes, s i r . 

4 EXAMINER BROOKS: Do you wish t o make an 

5 opening statement? 

6 MR. LARSON: I ' l l waive opening statement. 

7 EXAMINER BROOKS: Do you wish t o make an 

8 opening statement? 

9 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No, s i r . 

10 EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. You may 

11 proceed. 

12 MR. LARSON: I ' d l i k e t o c a l l Mr. Compton 

13 as my f i r s t witness. 

14 MARK COMPTON 

15 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

16 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR. LARSON: 

18 Q. Please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the record. 

19 A. Mark Compton. 

2 0 Q. Where do you reside? 

21 A. Midland, Texas. 

22 Q. By whom are you employed and i n what capacity? 

23 A. Cimarex Energy Company as a landman. 

24 Q. How long have you been employed by Cimarex? 

25 A. Almost two years. 
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1 Q. Could you b r i e f l y summarize your education and 

2 o i l and gas employment background? 

3 A. Degree i n Finance from the U n i v e r s i t y of 

4 Tennessee i n K n o x v i l l e . I've been a landman f o r almost 

5 seven years, the l a s t f i v e years i n Lea and Eddy 

6 Counties. 

7 Q. Are you a Registered Professional Landman? 

8 A. Yes, s i r . 

9 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the land matters t h a t 

10 p e r t a i n t o Cimarex's a p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s case? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d i n a D i v i s i o n 

13 hearing? 

14 A. Yes. Case Number 14418. 

15 Q. And i n t h a t hearing, were you q u a l i f i e d as an 

16 expert i n land matters? 

17 A. I was. 

18 MR. LARSON: Mr. Examiner, based on Mr. 

19 Compton's educational and p r o f e s s i o n a l experience, I move 

20 t h a t he be q u a l i f i e d as an expert i n land matters. 

21 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

22 EXAMINER BROOKS: So q u a l i f i e d . 

23 Q. (By Mr. Larson) Mr. Compton, what i s Cimarex 

24 seeking i n i t s a p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s case? 

25 A. We're seeking an order c r e a t i n g a standard 
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1 4 0-acre u n i t i n the northeast h a l f of the northwest h a l f 

2 of Section 21, Township 19 South, Range 31 East, 2,500 

3 f e e t t o the base of the Bone Spring formation; a 160-acre 

4 nonstandard o i l spacing and p r o r a t i o n u n i t i n the east 

5 h a l f of the west h a l f of Section 21; and a p o o l i n g of a l l 

6 mineral i n t e r e s t s from 2,500 t o the base of the Bone 

7 Spring i n the east h a l f of the west h a l f of Section 21. 

8 Q. Who holds the surface ownership i n t h i s 

9 proposed 160-acre p r o j e c t ? 

10 A. The BLM does. 

11 Q. Are you aware of any disputed t i t l e issues 

12 p e r t a i n i n g t o the proposed p r o j e c t area? 

13 A. No. 

14 Q. Does Cimarex own ownership i n t e r e s t s i n each 

15 q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r s e c t i o n of the proposed 160-acre p r o j e c t 

16 area? 

17 A. We do. 

18 Q. How d i d you acquire those i n t e r e s t s ? 

19 A. We acquired our i n t e r e s t s i n the n o r t h h a l f of 

20 t h i s u n i t w i t h a farmout from Devon Energy, 81 percent. 

21 We then picked up a term assignment from Marbob and EGL 

22 Resources. We then picked up -- executed operating 

23 agreements w i t h the f i v e companies t h a t are p a r t of the 

24 Bass Group, who own 4 0 percent of the south, and also 
25 w i t h Seven Rivers, who owns 4 percent of the south. 

I 
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1 Q. Did you also reach agreement w i t h EGL? 

2 A. Yes, we have. Thomson w i t h EGL. 

3 Q. And please b r i e f l y describe the w e l l t h a t 

4 Cimarex proposes t o d r i l l i n the p r o j e c t area. 

5 A. We plan t o d r i l l a Penny Pincher 21 Fed. Com. 

6 Number 2 as a h o r i z o n t a l w e l l i n the second Bone Spring 

7 sandstone formation, w i t h an orthodox surface l o c a t i o n i n 

8 the northeast of the northwest and an orthodox bottom 

9 hole l o c a t i o n i n the southeast of the southwest. 

10 Q. I s the second Bone Spring sandstone the only 

11 t a r g e t f o r the proposed well? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. At t h i s time, I ' d ask you t o i d e n t i f y Cimarex 

14 E x h i b i t Number 1. 

15 A. I t ' s a C-102. 

16 Q. Does the p l a t included i n E x h i b i t 1 depict the 

17 l o c a t i o n of the w e l l t h a t Cimarex proposes t o complete? 

18 A. Yes, i t does. 

19 Q. Does i t a c c u r a t e l y i d e n t i f y the surface and 

20 bottom hole l o c a t i o n s of the well? 

21 A. Yes, i t does. 

22 Q. And are both of those l o c a t i o n s i n an orthodox 

23 l o c a t i o n ? 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. W i l l the e n t i r e w e l l be i n an or thodox 
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2 A. Yes. 

3 Q • I n your r o l e as a landman, were you 

4 responsible f o r i d e n t i f y i n g a l l uncommitted i n t e r e s t 

5 owners i n the proposed p r o j e c t area? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. How d i d you accomplish that? 

8 A. We i n i t i a l l y r e t a i n e d Shaw I n t e r e s t , a 

9 brokerage f i r m i n Midland, t o determine the ownership, 

10 and then also the Chappell Law Firm t o do the t i t l e 

11 paperwork. 

12 Q. Do these two f i r m s work under your d i r e c t i o n ? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t 2. 

15 A. A l i s t of i n t e r e s t owners. 

16 Q. These are uncommitted i n t e r e s t owners? 

17 A. Correct. 

18 Q. And d i d you prepare t h i s l i s t ? 

19 A. Yes. I prepared i t on i n f o r m a t i o n I received 

20 from both Shaw and Chappell. 

21 Q. Are a l l of the p a r t i e s l i s t e d on E x h i b i t 2 

22 working i n t e r e s t owners? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. Are a l l of these l i s t e d addresses good 

25 addresses? 
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1 A. Yes, they are. 

2 Q. Would i t be c o r r e c t t o say t h a t a l l the 

3 p a r t i e s l i s t e d on E x h i b i t 2 are the p a r t i e s t h a t you seek 

4 t o pool i n t h i s case? 

5 A. They are. 

6 Q • At l e a s t 3 0 days p r i o r t o the f i l i n g of 

7 Cimarex's a p p l i c a t i o n , d i d you attempt t o o b t a i n a 

8 v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r of a l l of these working i n t e r e s t 

9 owners? 

10 A. We d i d . 

11 Q. Please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t Number 3. 

12 A. That 1s a sample proposal l e t t e r t h a t was sent 

13 t o a l l of the working i n t e r e s t owners. 

14 Q. You prepared and signed t h i s l e t t e r ? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. Did you send t h i s same i d e n t i c a l l e t t e r t o a l l 

17 the p a r t i e s l i s t e d on E x h i b i t 2? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. Did you enclose anything w i t h t h i s l e t t e r ? 

20 A. We enclosed an AFE and a proposed operating 

21 agreement. 

22 Q. And i f y o u ' l l next i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t Number 4. 

23 A. That's the AFE t h a t was sent w i t h the w e l l 

24 proposal. 

25 Q. Who prepared the AFE on behalf of Cimarex? 
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1 A. Michael Swain, r e s e r v o i r engineer. 

2 Q. And he w i l l t e s t i f y l a t e r i n t h i s case? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. A f t e r you sent the proposal l e t t e r w i t h the 

5 AFE and proposed operating agreement, d i d you or anyone 

6 else a t Cimarex communicate w i t h any of the i n t e r e s t 

7 owners? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Did you personally? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. And anyone else at Cimarex? 

12 A. Yes. J e f f Goutcher who i s the r e g i o n a l land 

13 manager of the Permian region of Cimarex. 

14 Q. Were you unable t o s t r i k e a deal w i t h any of 

15 the i n t e r e s t owners? 

16 A. No, we were not. 

17 Q. I n your op i n i o n , d i d Cimarex make a g o o d - f a i t h 

18 e f f o r t t o o b t a i n the v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r of a l l i n t e r e s t 

19 owners before f i l i n g the a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

2 0 A. Yes. 

21 Q. Please r e f e r again t o E x h i b i t 4. Does i t 

22 i d e n t i f y the cost of the proposed h o r i z o n t a l well? 

23 A. Yes. I t has a dry hole cost of 1,863,990, and 

24 a completed w e l l cost of 3,687,061. 

25 Q. Does Cimarex have p r i o r experience i n the 
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1 d r i l l i n g and completing of h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s i n the Bone 

2 Spring i n Southeastern New Mexico? 

3 A. Yes, s i r . I n the l a s t 12 months, we've 

4 d r i l l e d 11 h o r i z o n t a l Bone Spring w e l l s i n Southeast New 

5 Mexico. 

6 Q. Were you p e r s o n a l l y i n v o l v e d i n the 

7 development of any of those wells? 

8 A. Seven of them. 

9 Q. And i n your experience i n t h i s area, are the 

10 w e l l costs set out i n the AFE i n l i n e w i t h the cost of 

11 other h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s t h a t Cimarex has d r i l l e d ? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. What e n t i t y are you requesting the D i v i s i o n t o 

14 designate as the operator of the proposed well? 

15 A. Cimarex Energy Company of Colorado. 

16 Q. What i s the r e l a t i o n s h i p between Cimarex 

17 Energy of Colorado and Cimarex Energy Company which f i l e d 

18 the a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

19 A. Cimarex Energy Company of Colorado i s a 

2 0 wholly-owned s u b s i d i a r y of Cimarex Energy Company. 

21 Q. Do you have a recommendation f o r the Examiner 

22 f o r the amounts which Cimarex should be pai d f o r 

23 sup e r v i s i o n and a d m i n i s t r a t i v e expenses? 

24 A. We request 7,000 a month be allowed f o r 
25 d r i l l i n g the w e l l and 700 a month f o r the sup e r v i s i o n and 
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1 a d m i n i s t r a t i o n a f t e r the w e l l i s completed. 

2 Q. Are these amounts s u b s t a n t i a l l y equivalent t o 

3 those p r e v i o u s l y approved by the D i v i s i o n f o r --

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. -- h o r i z o n t a l wells? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. Please wai t u n t i l I f i n i s h my question. 

8 I s Cimarex requesting t h a t the r a t e s f o r 

9 sup e r v i s i o n and a d m i n i s t r a t i v e expenses be p e r i o d i c a l l y 

10 adjusted, pursuant t o COPAS accounting procedures? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. And does Cimarex also seek a 20 0 percent 

13 charge f o r the r i s k of d r i l l i n g and completing the 

14 proposed well? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. Did Cimarex provide c e r t i f i e d m a i l n o t i c e s of 

17 i t s a p p l i c a t i o n and today's hearing t o the i n t e r e s t 

18 owners l i s t e d i n E x h i b i t 2? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. Please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t Number 5. 

21 A. I t ' s one of the l e t t e r s t o the i n t e r e s t owners 

22 p r o v i d i n g n o t i c e of the a p p l i c a t i o n and hearing. 

23 Q. Was the same n o t i c e l e t t e r sent t o each of the 

24 i n t e r e s t owners? 

25 A. Yes, i t was. 
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Were they a l l sent t o good addresses? 

2 A. Yes, they were. 

3 Q • Please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t Number 6. 

4 A. I t ' s a l i s t of o f f s e t operators or working 

5 i n t e r e s t owners. 

6 Q. Wi t h i n a qua r t e r s e c t i o n of the proposed 

7 160-acre p r o j e c t area? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Who prepared t h i s l i s t ? 

10 A. The Hinkle Law Firm. 

11 Q. Pursuant t o your d i r e c t i o n ? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. Were c e r t i f i e d m a i l l e t t e r s sent t o each of 

14 the o f f s e t operators and i n t e r e s t owners n o t i f y i n g them 

15 of the f i l i n g of the a p p l i c a t i o n and today's hearing? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. Please i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t Number 7. 

18 A. That's one of the l e t t e r s t o the o f f s e t 

19 operators and i n t e r e s t owners p r o v i d i n g n o t i c e of the 

20 a p p l i c a t i o n and the hearing. 

21 Q. This same l e t t e r was sent t o each of the 

22 o f f s e t operators and i n t e r e s t owners? 

23 A. Yes, s i r . 

24 Q. To your knowledge, does any i n t e r e s t owner 

25 w i t h i n the proposed p r o j e c t area have a permit t o d r i l l a 
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w e l l w i t h i n the p r o j e c t area? 

2 A. No. 

3 Q. Are you aware of any plans t o d r i l l a w e l l i n 

4 the p r o j e c t area? 

5 A. No. 

6 Q. And i n your o p i n i o n , w i l l Cimarex's 

7 

8 

c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s be v i o l a t e d i f the D i v i s i o n denies i t s 

a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

9 A. Yes. 

10 MR. LARSON: That's a l l I have f o r Mr. 

11 Compton. I move admission of E x h i b i t s 1 through 7. 

12 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

13 EXAMINER BROOKS: E x h i b i t s 1 through 7 are 

14 admitted. 

15 ( E x h i b i t s 1 through 7 were admitted.) 

16 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have a few questions. 

17 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yes, Ms. Munds-Dry, you 

18 may examine the witness. 

19 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

20 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

21 Q- Good morning. 

22 A. Good morning. How are you? 

23 Q. Good. A f t e r your February 8th l e t t e r , you 

24 d i d n ' t c a l l Mr. Scott t o f o l l o w up on t h i s l e t t e r , d i d 

25 you? 
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1 A. No, ma'am, I d i d not. 

2 Q. You d i d n ' t email him? 

3 A. No, ma'am, I d i d not. 

4 Q. So no f o l l o w up a f t e r t h i s February 8th 

5 l e t t e r ? 

6 A. No. Mr. Scott, as l a t e as l a s t week, word got 

7 back t o me t h a t he was r e f u s i n g t o speak w i t h me. So I 

8 put him i n touch w i t h my manager, who spoke w i t h him. 

9 Q. Do you know i f Mr. Scott and your manager 

10 spoke? 

11 A. I do. 

12 Q. And d i d they have a conversation? 

13 A. I am t o l d they had a conversation. Yes, 

14 ma'am. 

15 Q. And are you aware of whether they reached any 

16 k i n d of agreement? 

17 A. I am assuminging by the f a c t t h a t we're here, 

18 they d i d not. 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank y o u . T h a t ' s a l l t h e 

20 q u e s t i o n s I have . 

21 EXAMINATION 

22 BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

23 Q. Mr . Compton, when you were s p e a k i n g abou t 

24 m i n e r a l owners - - and y o u ' l l have t o p a r d o n my l o n g - t i m e 

25 h a b i t s o f t e r m i n o l o g y w h i c h have no p a r t i c u l a r 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
adeaec61 -993e-4b9e-9fea-79976375d 1 e2 



Page 17 
1 s i g n i f i c a n c e , other than I've formed these h a b i t s . I 

2 t h i n k of mineral owners being a mineral fee owner. 

3 A. Correct. 

4 Q. But you're a c t u a l l y t a l k i n g about lease 

5 owners? 

6 A. Correct. Leasehold i n t e r e s t owners. 

7 Q. You have t o use the terminology t h a t ' s more 

8 f a m i l i a r t o me. A l l of the people l i s t e d on E x h i b i t 2 

9 are owners of i n t e r e s t s i n o i l and gas leases? 

10 A. They are the uncommitted. 

11 Q. But none of them i s an owner of an unleased 

12 i n t e r e s t ? 

13 A. No, s i r . 

14 Q • They're a l l owners of i n t e r e s t s i n o i l and gas 

15 leases? 

16 A. They are. 

17 Q. I s t h i s a Bone Spring prospect? 

18 A. Yes, s i r . 

19 Q- And are you seeking -- you sa i d you're seeking 

20 a 40-acre u n i t i n the northeast of the northwest? 

21 A. Yes, s i r . 

22 Q. I s t h a t t o be from the surface t o the base of 

23 the Bone Spring? 

24 A. That's from 2,500 subsurface t o the base of 

25 the Bone Spring. 
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1 Q. I s there a depth severance at 2,500? 

2 A. Yes, s i r , there i s . 

3 Q. 2,500 t o the base of the Bone Spring. Okay. 

4 And then you're seeking the l a t e r a l i n the 

5 Bone Spring only? 

6 A. Yes, s i r . 

7 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Very good. I 

8 b e l i e v e t h a t ' s a l l my questions. 

9 Mr. Warnell? 

10 EXAMINATION 

11 BY EXAMINER WARNELL: 

12 Q. Mr. Compton, j u s t f o r c l a r i f i c a t i o n , I b e l i e v e 

13 you s t a t e d your only i n t e r e s t -- your only t a r g e t was the 

14 second Bone Spring sandstone? 

15 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

16 EXAMINER WARNELL: No other questions. 

17 EXAMINER BROOKS: Do you have anything 

18 f u r t h e r ? 

19 MR. LARSON: I have nothing f u r t h e r . 

20 EXAMINER BROOKS: The witness may stand 

21 down. C a l l your next witness. 

22 MR. LARSON: Thank you. I c a l l Lee 

23 Catalano. 
24 LEE CATALANO 

25 H a v i n g been f i r s t d u l y sworn , t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 
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1 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

2 BY MR. LARSON: 

3 Q. Please s t a t e your name f o r the record. 

4 A. Lee Catalano. 

5 Q. Where do you reside? 

6 A. Midland, Texas. 

7 Q. By whom are you employed and i n what capacity? 

8 A. I'm a senior g e o l o g i s t w i t h Cimarex Energy. 

9 Q. And how long have you been employed by Cimarex 

10 Energy? 

11 A. About f i v e years. 

12 Q. Could you b r i e f l y summarize your p r o f e s s i o n a l 

13 experience i n the o i l and gas industry? 

14 A. Th i r t y - t w o years working the Permian Basin i n 

15 New Mexico and I have a Master's degree from Oklahoma 

16 State. 

17 Q. Do you p e r s o n a l l y have experience w i t h the 

18 completion of h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s i n Southeastern New 

19 Mexico? 

20 A. Yes. P r i m a r i l y t h a t ' s a l l I've done f o r the 

21 l a s t two and a h a l f years. 

22 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the g e o l o g i c a l aspects 

23 of Cimarex s a p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s case? 

24 A. I am. 

25 Q- Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

,„ _ _ _ ^ Ij 
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1 D i v i s i o n ? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. Were you q u a l i f i e d as an expert g e o l o g i s t i n 

4 t h a t case? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 MR. LARSON: Mr. Examiner, I move f o r the 

7 q u a l i f i c a t i o n of Mr. Catalano as an expert g e o l o g i s t f o r 

8 purposes of t h i s hearing. 

9 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

10 EXAMINER BROOKS: So q u a l i f i e d . 

11 Q. (By Mr. Larson) Did you have a hand i n 

12 Cimarex's a n a l y s i s of the prognosis f o r the proposed 

13 Penny Pincher 21 Federal Com. Number 2 Well? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. And I d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o E x h i b i t Number 

16 8 and ask you t o i d e n t i f y i t . 

17 A. E x h i b i t Number 8 i s a pro d u c t i o n map 

18 surrounding the Penny Pincher area. 

19 Q. Did you prepare t h i s e x h i b i t ? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. W i t h i n the yellow shaded area, we see fo u r 

22 l i n e s w i t h numbers at the tops of the l i n e s . What are 

23 those l i n e s intended t o depict? 

24 A. The fou r h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s t h a t we have 

25 proposed. 
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1 Q. And the subject of today's hearing i s the one 

2 marked Number 2? 

3 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

4 Q. What does i s t h i s e x h i b i t intended t o depict? 

5 A. This e x h i b i t i s t o show the producing 

6 i n t e r v a l s and r e s e r v o i r s i n the area surrounding the 

7 Penny Pincher lease, i n c l u d i n g the Bone Spring. 

8 Q. And do you agree w i t h Mr. Compton's testimony 

9 t h a t the t a r g e t of the proposed w e l l i s the second Bone 

10 Spring sand? 

11 A. Yes, i t i s . 

12 Q. Next I ' l l ask you t o i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t Number 

13 9. 

14 A. That i s a s t r u c t u r e map on top of the second 

15 Bone Spring sandstone. 

16 Q. Did you also prepare t h i s e x h i b i t ? 

17 A. I d i d . 

18 Q. What i s t h i s e x h i b i t intended t o depict? 

19 A. This e x h i b i t i s t o show the s t r u c t u r a l d i p of 

20 the second Bone Spring sand, which i s the t a r g e t i n t e r v a l 

21 f o r our h o r i z o n t a l proposal. I t shows t h a t the d i p i s 

22 o f f t o the south/southeast. 

23 Q. And when were you were analyzing the prognosis 

24 f o r the proposed w e l l , d i d you also look at the f i r s t and 

25 t h i r d Bone Spring sands? 
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Yes. But our t a r g e t i s the second sand here. 

2 Q. Next 1 111 ask you t o i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t Number 

3 10 . 

4 A. Okay. E x h i b i t 10 i s a Net P o r o s i t y Isopach 

5 Map of the second Bone Spring sand. 

6 Q. Again, we have the f o u r l i n e s d e p i c t i n g 

7 proposed w e l l l o c a t i o n s f o r h o r i z o n t a l wells? 

8 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

9 Q. And the one marked Number 2 i s the proposed 

10 w e l l t h a t 1 s the subject of the hearing today? 

11 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. Did you have a hand i n determining the surface 

13 and bottom hole l o c a t i o n s of the proposed well? 

14 A. Yes, I d i d . 

15 Q. How were those determined? 

16 A. Those were determined based upon t r y i n g t o 

17 maximize the amount of pay t h a t the h o r i z o n t a l w e l l would 

18 encounter, i n a d d i t i o n t o being the l e g a l l o c a t i o n s . 

19 Q. Okay. Did you review w e l l data f o r other 

20 w e l l s i n the v i c i n i t y ? 

21 A. Yes. A l l of them. 

22 Q. A l l p u b l i c l y - a v a i l a b l e data? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. And d i r e c t i n g your a t t e n t i o n again t o E x h i b i t 

25 Number 10, what are the parameters t h a t you used t o 
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1 determine the p o r o s i t y of the r e s e r v o i r sand? 

2 A. What I used f o r mapping purposes i s a 10 

3 percent d e n s i t y c u t o f f . That's what t h i s map i s based 

4 upon. 

5 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , i s a 10 percent p o r o s i t y 

6 c u t o f f a good i n d i c a t o r f o r a prod u c t i v e h o r i z o n t a l w e l l 

7 i n the second Bone Spring sand? 

8 A. At t h i s p o i n t , yes. 

9 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , w i l l the proposed w e l l 

10 encounter pay, based on t h i s 10 percent p o r o s i t y along 

11 the e n t i r e l e n g t h of the wellbore? 

12 A. I t w i l l . 

13 Q. Next I d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o E x h i b i t Number 

14 11. 

15 A. E x h i b i t 11 i s an east/west cross-section, 

16 s t r u c t u r a l cross-section, across the Penny Pincher area. 

17 Q. I s i t intended t o show the productive i n t e r v a l 

18 and the s t r a t i g r a p h i c t a r g e t f o r Bone Spring h o r i z o n t a l 

19 wells? 

20 A. Yes, i t i s . 

21 Q. I n your op i n i o n , i s the o v e r a l l t a r g e t 

22 i n t e r v a l homogeneous? 

23 A. The o v e r a l l i n t e r v a l i s homogeneous across 

24 t h a t area, yes. 

25 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , are a l l f o u r q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r 
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1 sections i n the proposed 160-acre p r o j e c t area 

2 prospective i n the second Bone Spring sand? 

3 A. Yes, they are. 

4 Q. Do you bel i e v e your o p i n i o n i s supported by 

5 your E x h i b i t Numbers 10 and 11? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. Could you e x p l a i n why? 

8 A. As you can see on the cross-section, I've got 

9 a w e l l -- i t ' s a c t u a l l y a v e r t i c a l second Bone Spring 

10 producer there i n Section 20 t o the west. Then our p i l o t 

11 hole from the Penny Pincher Number 1 contains pay, as 

12 w e l l as the Devon w e l l i n Section 22. As you can see 

13 from the cross-section, the h o r i z o n t a l t a r g e t i n t e r v a l 

14 c a r r i e s across the e n t i r e lease. 

15 Q. And i n your o p i n i o n , w i l l the g r a n t i n g of 

16 Cimarex's a p p l i c a t i o n serve i n the i n t e r e s t of 

17 conservation and p r e s e r v a t i o n of waste? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. Why do you hold t h a t opinion? 

20 A. By d r i l l i n g a h o r i z o n t a l w e l l , w e ' l l recover 

21 many more reserves than i n d i v i d u a l 40-acre w e l l s . 

22 Q. V e r t i c a l wells? 

23 A. V e r t i c a l w e l l s . Yes. 

24 MR. LARSON: Mr. Examiner, I move the 

25 admission of E x h i b i t s 8 through 11. 
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1 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

2 EXAMINER BROOKS: E x h i b i t s 8 through 11 

3 are admitted. 

4 ( E x h i b i t s 8 through 11 were admitted.) 

5 MR. LARSON: I ' l l pass the witness at t h i s 

6 time. 

7 EXAMINER BROOKS: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

8 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Can I have j u s t one 

9 minute, please? 

10 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

11 (A discus s i o n was held o f f the record.) 

12 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Good morning. Nice t o see 

13 you again t h i s morning. 

14 THE WITNESS: Good morning. 

15 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

16 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

17 Q. I f we could t u r n t o your E x h i b i t Number 10. 

18 I f I understand your testimony t h i s morning, you sa i d 

19 t h a t you used a 10 percent d e n s i t y c u t o f f ; i s t h a t 

20 correct? 

21 A. For mapping purposes. Correct. 

22 Q. And you show your s t r u c t u r a l c u t o f f here -- I 

23 t h i n k t h a t says 50; i s t h a t r i g h t ? My eyes are not so 

24 great t h i s morning. That's cl o s e s t t o the proposed Penny 

25 Pincher Number 2? 
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1 A. Are you r e f e r r i n g t o the 50-foot contour? 

2 Q. I s t h a t what i t says, t h a t there's a 50-foot 

3 contour there? 

4 A. The green l i n e . Yes. 

5 Q. I s t h a t green? I'm sor r y . I t looks black on 

6 my copy. 

7 A. Yeah. 

8 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I'm a l i t t l e puzzled by 

9 t h i s . May I approach, Mr. Examiner? 

10 EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

11 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) Mr. Catalano, d i d you 

12 t e s t i f y as the g e o l o g i s t i n Case Number 14418? 

13 A. I d i d . 

14 Q. And i s t h i s -- what I've handed you, what's 

15 been marked as Lynx E x h i b i t Number 3, the Net P o r o s i t y 

16 Isopach Map t h a t you prepared f o r t h a t hearing? 

17 A. Yes, i t i s . 

18 Q. I f we compare your -- I be l i e v e i t was marked 

19 E x h i b i t Number 12 i n t h a t case and your E x h i b i t Number 10 

20 i n t h i s case -- I n o t i c e a few d i f f e r e n c e s . For example, 

21 do you see i n Section 21, which i s the subject of t h i s 

22 hearing, your contour l i n e t h a t ' s marked 50? Do you see 

23 that? 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. And t h a t appears t o have s h i f t e d down - -
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1 A. I t has. 

2 Q. -- i n t o t h i s s e c t i o n ; i s t h a t correct? 

3 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

4 Q. And I also note here t h a t i n Section 22 you 

5 have a contour l i n e t h a t ' s marked 100 t h a t ' s also 

6 s h i f t e d ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Just out of c u r i o s i t y , there appears t o be 

9 more d e t a i l on your E x h i b i t Number 12 than your E x h i b i t 

10 Number 10 i n t h i s case. Was there a reason f o r that? 

11 A. No. This e x h i b i t you're l o o k i n g at today i s a 

12 r e v i s e d map based upon the r e s u l t s of the Penny Pincher 

13 Number 1 and my r e - i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the data i n the 

14 area. 

15 Q. I see. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the Marbob Top 

16 D o l l a r Well t h a t ' s i n Section 16? I be l i e v e i t ' s i n the 

17 southwest quarter. 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. I n f a c t , I t h i n k , i f I'm c o r r e c t , i n Case 

20 Number 14418, you used t h a t as a c o n t r o l w e l l on t h a t 

21 map; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

22 A. And i t ' s used on t h i s map, too, as a c o n t r o l . 

23 I t ' s 34 there i n Section 16. 

24 Q. Okay. But you d i d n ' t use t h a t i n your 

25 cross-section; i s t h a t correct? 
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1 A. No. I d i d n ' t f e e l l i k e i t was p e r t i n e n t . I t 

2 wasn't p e r t i n e n t t o what we are t r y i n g t o show today. 

3 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the second sand Bone 

4 Spring t e s t t h a t was done i n the Marbob Top D o l l a r Well? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. But you d i d not f e e l t h a t t h a t was p e r t i n e n t ; 

7 i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

8 A. No. 

9 Q. Why i s that? 

10 A. I have a w e l l c o n t r o l p o i n t now t h a t ' s only 40 

11 acres away from t h i s proposed w e l l t h a t we're going t o 

12 d r i l l . 

13 Q. Yet you used t h i s w e l l here, Number 47, t h a t 

14 i s what, almost two miles away, ins t e a d of the Marbob? 

15 A. Correct. What I'm t r y i n g t o show w i t h my 

16 c r o s s - s e c t i o n -- I t h i n k I t e s t i f i e d t o t h a t -- i s the 

17 c o n t i n u i t y of the productive sand across Section 21. So 

18 an east/west cross-section was appropriate t o show t h a t . 

19 Q. I see. Mr. Catalano, do you know i f i t was 

20 the same sand t h a t was t e s t e d i n the Marbob Well t h a t i s 

21 the t a r g e t i n the Penny Pincher Well Number 1? 

22 A. I t would be w i t h i n the same i n t e r v a l . 

23 Q. So i t was i n the same sand; i s t h a t correct? 

24 A. I t was i n the same i n t e r v a l . 

25 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No f u r t h e r questions. 
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1 Thank you. 

2 EXAMINATION 

3 BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

4 Q. Okay. Mr. Catalano, E x h i b i t Number 12 t h a t 

5 was tendered by Lynx, t h a t i s a previous s t r u c t u r e --

6 previous isopach map t h a t you drew? 

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 Q. That was admitted i n evidence i n the previous 

9 case i n v o l v i n g t h i s section? 

10 A. Yes, s i r . 

11 Q. I had one question t h a t I should have asked 

12 p r e l i m i n a r y t o t h a t . E x h i b i t Number 9 here i s your 

13 s t r u c t u r e map. What i s the s i g n i f i c a n c e of s t r u c t u r e 

14 w i t h regard t o t h i s prospect? 

15 A. I t ' s important -- as f a r as t r a p p i n g , i t 

16 doesn't matter. I t ' s important o n l y when you d r i l l your 

17 d i r e c t i o n a l w e l l t o have an idea of what the d i p i s f o r 

18 s t e e r i n g purposes. 

19 Q. Okay. Would i t make any d i f f e r e n c e -- would 

20 the s t r u c t u r e make any d i f f e r e n c e i n t e l l i n g you whether 

21 t h i s w e l l would be b e t t e r developed by north/south or by 

22 east/west or some other pattern? 

23 A. No. 

24 Q. I d i d n ' t t h i n k so. But I wanted t o be sure, 

25 s ince I ' m not a g e o l o g i s t . 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
adeaec61 -993e-4b9e-9fea-79976375d 1 e2 



Page 30 

1 A. The t r a p i s a s t r a t i g r a p h i c t r a p . 

2 Q. Okay. Then l o o k i n g at your E x h i b i t 10 and 

3 E x h i b i t 12 t h a t was shown, i f you -- now, the Penny 

4 Pincher Number 1 has been d r i l l e d ? 

5 A. The p i l o t hole has been d r i l l e d . 

6 Q. Okay. The l a t e r a l has not been d r i l l e d ? 

7 A. We have a r i g moving i n t h i s week, a c t u a l l y . 

8 Q. Okay. 

9 A. We're using a d i f f e r e n t r i g t o d r i l l the 

10 l a t e r a l . 

11 Q. You're going t o be back here next week t o 

12 present t h a t case t o the Commission? 

13 A. Apparently. 

14 Q. Okay. That's what I thought. 

15 When you d r i l l e d the p i l o t hole-- w e l l , f i r s t 

16 of a l l , these bold numbers t h a t are on E x h i b i t Number 10, 

17 are those f e e t of pay? 

18 A. Correct. 

19 Q. That were encountered i n p a r t i c u l a r wells? 

2 0 A. Correct. 

21 Q. So since the Penny Pincher Number 1 i s w i t h i n 

22 the c i r c l e t h a t ' s marked 75, which, i f I i n t e r p r e t the 

23 map c o r r e c t l y , t h a t means i t was p r e d i c t e d t o be above 

24 75? 

25 A. 75 or gre a t e r . 
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1 Q. Right. And i t ended up being 32? 

2 A. Right, using a 10 percent c u t o f f . 

3 Q. I'm not s u r p r i s e d t h a t you re-drew your map 

4 under these circumstances. 

5 A. Correct. 

6 Q. As was discussed i n the previous hearing, you 

7 r e a l l y don't have a l o t of w e l l s here t o work w i t h ; 

8 r i g h t ? 

9 A. That's c o r r e c t . That's the f i r s t w e l l i n 

10 Section 21 t h a t gave us c o n t r o l , a c t u a l l y . 

11 Q. So what i s the basis f o r your drawing t h a t 50 

12 contour l i n e as going -- what's the basis f o r the hump 

13 between Section 21 and i n t o Section 20 i n t h a t 50-foot 

14 contour l i n e ? 

15 MR. LARSON: Which e x h i b i t are you 

16 r e f e r r i n g t o , Mr. Examiner? 

17 Q. I f you look at Section 21, t h i s 50-foot 

18 contour l i n e goes across Section 21 and i n t o Section 20; 

19 r i g h t ? 

20 A. Correct. 

21 Q. I t goes on a -- something approaching a 

22 north/northwest d i r e c t i o n ? 

23 A. I n Section 20 there? 

24 Q. Through Section 21, and then i t turns sharply 

25 southward i n Section 20. That's what I'm c a l l i n g the 
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1 hump. What's the basis f o r drawing t h a t hump, as opposed 

2 t o drawing i t s t r a i g h t along, since you have a 32 p o i n t 

3 i n 21 and you have a 36 p o i n t i n 2 0? 

4 A. Just b r i n g i n g i t i n cl o s e r t o t h a t w e l l . 

5 Q. No. Further south across 21, since you 

6 obviously see i t as going f a r south i n 20, what's the 

7 basis f o r the p a r t i c u l a r shape t h a t you've drawn there? 

8 A. This i s p a r t of a l a r g e r r e g i o n a l map t h a t I 

9 c o n s t a n t l y update every time w e l l s are d r i l l e d , so my 

10 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n changes as new data, you know, comes 

11 about. And l i k e I s a i d , i t ' s p a r t of a bigger 

12 d e p o s i t i o n a l system. I have other c o n t r o l t h a t i s 

13 i n f l u e n c i n g t h i s . 

14 Q. I'm j u s t curious as t o why you t h i n k t h a t 

15 the -- w e l l , why you t h i n k t h a t the -- because i t doesn't 

16 seem t o be obvious, based on the p o i n t s you have, why you 

17 t h i n k t h a t the s t r u c t u r e becomes t h i c k e r t h a t q u i c k l y as 

18 you move from n o r t h t o south i n Section 21, as opposed t o 

19 being more concentrated t o the south. 

2 0 A. I don't know, f r a n k l y . 

21 Q. Okay. That's a good answer. 

22 A. I don't know. That's my best estimate. 
23 Q. That's not an answer t h a t you o f t e n get from 

24 g e o l o g i s t s . 

25 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. That's a l l I 
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1 have. Mr. Warnell. 

2 EXAMINATION 

3 BY EXAMINER WARNELL: 

4 Q. Mr. Catalano, I j u s t wanted t o v e r i f y on the 

5 Number 1 w e l l , you say t h a t the v e r t i c a l has been 

6 d r i l l e d ? 

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 Q. And you've released t h a t r i g ? 

9 A. Yeah. I t wasn't capable of d r i l l i n g the 

10 h o r i z o n t a l p o r t i o n of the hole. 

11 Q. So you d r i l l e d t h a t w e l l , the v e r t i c a l 

12 s e c t i o n , you logged i t . Did you pl u g i t back then? 

13 A. We set casing, and i t ' s -- a l l we've got t o do 

14 now i s go i n and cut a window and take o f f -- b u i l d our 

15 curve. 

16 Q. And none of the other w e l l s have been spudded 

17 or d r i l l e d ? 

18 A. No, s i r . 

19 Q. The other three w e l l s . 

2 0 EXAMINER WARNELL: I have no f u r t h e r 

21 questions. 

22 EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Larson? 

23 MR. LARSON: No f u r t h e r questions f o r Mr. 

24 Catalano. 
25 EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. You may 
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2 MR. CATALANO: Thank you. 

3 EXAMINER BROOKS: You may c a l l your next 

4 witness. 

5 MR. LARSON: Mr. Swain. 

6 MICHAEL SWAIN 

7 Having been f i r s t d u l y sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

8 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

9 BY MR. LARSON: 

10 Q. Please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the record. 

11 A. Michael Swain. 

12 Q. Where do you reside? 

13 A. Midland, Texas. 

14 Q. By whom are you employed and i n what capacity? 

15 A. Cimarex Energy as a r e s e r v o i r engineer. 

16 Q. And please summarize your p r o f e s s i o n a l 

17 experience • 

18 A. I've worked e i g h t years as a r e s e r v o i r 

19 engineer i n the i n d u s t r y . 

20 Q. And how long w i t h Cimarex? 

21 A. Six years. 

22 Q- And what i s your focus as a r e s e r v o i r 

23 g e o l o g i s t f o r Cimarex? 

24 A. Reservoir engineer. 

25 Q. Okay. I'm sor r y . 
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A. I do economic and reserve a n a l y s i s , and I also 

2 do d r i l l i n g and completed plans f o r w e l l s i n southeast 

3 New Mexico. 

4 Q. And d i d you have a r o l e i n e v a l u a t i n g 

5 

6 

prospects f o r the h o r i z o n t a l w e l l proposed i n t h i s 

a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

7 

8 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

9 D i v i s i o n ? 

10 A. Yes, I have. 

11 Q. Were you q u a l i f i e d as expert i n petroleum 

12 engineering i n t h a t hearing? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Do you r e c a l l the case number? 

15 A. Case 14418. 

16 MR. LARSON: Mr. Examiner, I move t h a t Mr. 

17 Swain be q u a l i f i e d as an expert i n petroleum engineering. 

18 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

19 EXAMINER BROOKS: So q u a l i f i e d . 

20 While we're i n t e r r u p t e d here, a question t h a t 

21 I d i d n ' t -- was E x h i b i t 12 admitted i n evidence? 

22 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Lynx E x h i b i t Number 3? 

23 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah. 

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I should have moved t o 

25 admit i t w i t h Mr. Catalano, but I can also wait u n t i l Mr. 
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1 Scott. 

2 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

3 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Would you l i k e me t o move 

4 t o admit i t ? 

5 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yes, since i t has 

6 already come up. 

7 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We move t o admit Lynx 

8 E x h i b i t 3 i n t o evidence. 

9 EXAMINER BROOKS: Lynx E x h i b i t Number 3 i s 

10 admitted. I'm j u s t going t o X out " E x h i b i t 12" on here 

11 and suggest t h a t the r e p o r t e r do the same on the o r i g i n a l 

12 so we won't get confused. 

13 Okay. You may continue then, Mr. Larson. 

14 ( E x h i b i t 3 was admitted.) 

15 Q. (By Mr. Larson) Did you hear Mr. Catalano's 

16 testimony t h a t a l l f o u r q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r sections i n the 

17 proposed p r o j e c t area w i l l be prospective i n the second 

18 Bone Spring sand? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. Do you agree w i t h t h a t opinion? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. What i s the basis f o r your opinion? 

23 A. Based on my experience, each 40-acre t r a c t has 

24 s u f f i c i e n t net pay t o produce hydrocarbons i n economic 

25 q u a n t i t y . 
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1 Q. I ' l l d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o Cimarex E x h i b i t 

2 Number 4. 

3 Mr. Compton t e s t i f i e d t h a t you prepared t h i s 

4 AFE; i s t h a t correct? 

5 A. Yes, I d i d . 

6 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , are the costs s t a t e d f o r 

7 d r i l l i n g and completing the proposed w e l l i n l i n e w i t h 

8 the costs of other h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s t h a t Cimarex has 

9 completed i n t h i s area of New Mexico? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. Did you also hear Mr. Compton's testimony 

12 regarding the proposed a d m i n i s t r a t i v e and supe r v i s i o n 

13 costs? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. I n your o p i n i o n , are those costs reasonable 

16 and i n l i n e w i t h the costs f o r s i m i l a r h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s 

17 t h a t Cimarex has d r i l l e d i n southeastern New Mexico? 

18 A. Yes, they are. 

19 Q. I d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o Cimarex E x h i b i t 

20 Number 12. Would you i d e n t i f y t h i s e x h i b i t ? 

21 A. I t ' s a d r i l l i n g prognosis f o r the Penny 

22 Pincher 21 Fed. 2H. 

23 Q. Did you prepare t h i s ? 

24 A. Yes, I d i d . 

2 5 Q. What was your purpose i n p r e p a r i n g i t ? 
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This document de p i c t s the d r i l l i n g plans f o r 

2 the Penny Pincher 21 2H. 

3 Q • I ' d ask you t o i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t Number 13. 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. What i s t h i s - e x h i b i t ? 

6 A. This i s a planned w e l l p a t h r e p o r t f o r the 

7 Penny Pincher 2H. 

8 Q • Who prepared t h i s e x h i b i t ? 

9 A. Baker Hughes, a d i r e c t i o n a l w e l l company. 

10 Q. Did Baker Hughes prepare t h i s planned w e l l p a t h 

11 r e p o r t at your d i r e c t i o n ? 

12 A. Yes, they d i d . 

13 Q. And does E x h i b i t 13 demonstrate t h a t the 

14 proposed w e l l i s e n t i r e l y i n an orthodox l o c a t i o n ? 

15 A. Yes, i t does. 

16 Q. I n your opinion, w i l l the proposed h o r i z o n t a l 

17 d r i l l i n g technique y i e l d higher economics than would the 

18 d r i l l i n g of f o u r v e r t i c a l w e l l s i n each q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r 

19 s e c t i o n of the p r o j e c t area? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. Why do you hold t h a t opinion? 

22 A. Because you can d r i l l one h o r i z o n t a l w e l l t o 

23 produce the same reserves as f o u r v e r t i c a l w e l l s . 

24 Q. And why would i t be more productive? 

25 A. H o r i z o n t a l d r i l l i n g , due t o the exposure of 
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1 the r e s e r v o i r , has shown t o produce higher recovery 

2 f a c t o r s than v e r t i c a l w e l l s . 

3 Q. That's i n your experience i n d r i l l i n g 

4 h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s i n Eddy County? 

5 A. Yes, s i r . 

6 Q. And i n your op i n i o n , w i l l the h o r i z o n t a l 

7 d r i l l i n g technique recover o i l t h a t would not otherwise 

8 be recovered? 

9 A. Yes, i t would. 

10 Q. I f you could e x p l a i n the basis f o r your 

11 o p i n i o n . 

12 A. H o r i z o n t a l d r i l l i n g allows you t o get much 

13 more exposure t o the r e s e r v o i r and allows f o r a l o t more 

14 contact w i t h the r e s e r v o i r , thus a l l o w i n g more reserves 

15 t o be produced from each 40-acre t r a c t along the 

16 w e l l p a t h . 

17 Q. And i n t h a t regard, do you b e l i e v e t h a t the 

18 g r a n t i n g of Cimarex's a p p l i c a t i o n would serve the 

19 i n t e r e s t of conservation and the pre v e n t i o n of waste? 

20 A. Yes, i t w i l l . 

21 Q. And i n your opinion, would the d e n i a l of the 

22 a p p l i c a t i o n v i o l a t e Cimarex's c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

23 A. Yes, i t would. 

24 MR. LARSON: I move t h e a d m i s s i o n o f 

25 E x h i b i t s 12 and 13 . 
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1 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

2 EXAMINER BROOKS: 12 and 13 are admitted. 

3 ( E x h i b i t s 12 and 13 were admitted.) 

4 MR. LARSON: Pass the witness. 

5 EXAMINER BROOKS: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

6 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

7 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

8 Q. Good morning, Mr. Swain. You j u s t t e s t i f i e d 
9 t h a t the d e n i a l of the a p p l i c a t i o n would v i o l a t e 

10 Cimarex's c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s . Could you e x p l a i n the 

11 basis f o r t h a t opinion? 

12 A. We have i n t e r e s t i n every spacing u n i t along 

13 the w e l l p a t h , and by not a l l o w i n g us t o d r i l l and 

14 complete t h i s w e l l , we w i l l not be able t o recover those 

15 reserves underneath each 40-acre t r a c t . 

16 Q. I b e l i e v e you t e s t i f i e d , Mr. Swain, t h a t you 

17 b e l i e v e a l l f o u r of the q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r sections i n the 

18 proposed p r o j e c t area are prospective? 
i 

19 A. Yes, they are. 

20 Q. Do you b e l i e v e t h a t each of the 

1 
21 q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r sections w i l l e q u a l l y c o n t r i b u t e t o the | 

22 p r o j e c t area? 

23 A. No, ma'am, they won't. 

24 Q. Why do you say tha t? 

25 A. Based on the cu r r en t mapping, w e l l s w i t h f 
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higher net pay t y p i c a l l y , i n my experience, produce more 

2 o i l than ones t h a t have less net pay. 

3 Q. What i s the net pay t h a t you're e s t i m a t i n g t o 

4 f i n d i n t h i s proposed well? 

5 A. I t v a r i e s from the surface o i l t o the bottom 

6 hole of the w e l l . Are you l o o k i n g f o r the average along 

7 the wellbore? 

8 Q. Let's go qua r t e r s e c t i o n by quarter s e c t i o n . 

9 I n the northwest, i f we look at the northeast q u a r t e r of 

10 the northwest q u a r t e r , what do you estimate the net pay 

11 being i n t h a t q u a r t e r section? 

12 A. Around 32 f e e t of pay. 

13 Q. What about i n the southwest quarter of the 

14 northwest quarter? 

15 A. Somewhere between 3 0 and 5 0 f e e t of pay. 

16 Q. Then as we go south, what about i n the 

17 northeast q u a r t e r of the southwest quarter? 

18 A. Over 50 f e e t of pay. 

19 Q. And f i n a l l y , i n the southwest quarter of the 

20 southwest quarter? 

21 A. Over 50 f e e t of pay. 

22 Q. Cimarex plans t o a l l o c a t e on a s t r a i g h t 

23 acreage basis? 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. Did you perform any s o r t of volumetrics t o 
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what the c o n t r i b u t i o n w i l l be of each 

2 qu a r t e r / q u a r t e r section? 

3 A. Did I perform those? 

4 Q. Did you prepare any volumetrics? 

5 A. Not f o r t h i s hearing, I d i d not. 

6 Q. But d i d you prepare them? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. But you d i d not provide them i n t h i s hearing? 

9 A. No. 

10 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No f u r t h e r questions. 

11 Thank you 

12 EXAMINATION 

13 BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

14 Q. Your estimates t h a t you gave t o Ms. Munds-Dry 

15 w i t h regard t o the f e e t of pay thickness i n various 

16 qua r t e r sections, i s t h a t based on Mr. Catalano's 

17 mapping? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. Is i t based on anything else? 

20 A. No, s i r . 

21 EXAMINER BROOKS: Thank you. That's a l l I 

22 have. 

23 EXAMINER WARNELL: I have no questions. 

24 EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Larson? 

25 MR. LARSON: I have no f u r t h e r questions 
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1 f o r Mr. Swain. I ' d l i k e t o reserve the o p p o r t u n i t y t o 

2 c a l l any of my witnesses back on r e b u t t a l . 

3 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. You may stand 

4 down. 

5 You may c a l l your witnesses f o r r e b u t t a l . 

6 Ms. Munds-Dry, would you l i k e t o make a 

7 statement? 

8 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No, s i r . We'd l i k e t o 

9 c a l l our f i r s t and only witness. 

10 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. You may c a l l your 

11 witness. 

12 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We'd l i k e t o c a l l Mr. 

13 Scott, please. 

14 LARRY SCOTT 

15 Having been f i r s t duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

16 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

17 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

18 Q. Good morning. Please s t a t e your f u l l name f o r 

19 the record. 

2 0 A. La r r y R. Scott. 

21 Q. And where do you reside? 

22 A. Hobbs, New Mexico. 

23 Q. And by whom are you employed? 

24 A. Lynx Petroleum Consultants, Incorporated. 

2 5 Q. What i s your p o s i t i o n w i t h Lynx? 
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I am the president and a p a r t owner of the 

2 company. 

3 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

4 D i v i s i o n , and were your c r e d e n t i a l s made a matter of 

5 record and accepted? 

6 A. On numerous occasions. 

7 Q. Were you q u a l i f i e d as a petroleum engineer i n 

8 the past? 

9 A. As w e l l as a p r a c t i c a l oilman. 

10 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t has 

11 been f i l e d by Cimarex i n t h i s case? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Examiner, we tender 

14 Mr. Scott as an expert witness i n petroleum engineering. 

15 MR. LARSON: And not as a p r a c t i c a l 

16 oilman? 

17 MS. MUNDS-DRY: We can throw t h a t i n , too. 

18 MR. LARSON: No o b j e c t i o n . 

19 EXAMINER BROOKS: He i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

20 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. 

21 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) Mr. Scott, would you 

22 b r i e f l y summarize f o r the Examiners the basis f o r Lynx's 

23 obj e c t i o n t o Cimarex's a p p l i c a t i o n today? 

24 A. Well, t h i s i s a c o n t i n u a t i o n of t h e i r Penny 

25 Pincher p r o j e c t we objected t o i n a hearing back i n 
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1 March. We f e l t l i k e the subsurface c o n t r o l f o r data i n 

2 the area was i n s u f f i c i e n t t o determine an accurate 

3 a l l o c a t i o n of the c o n t r i b u t i o n s of each 40-acre t r a c t t o 

4 the t o t a l recovery of the w e l l . 

5 They presented I guess what's now c a l l e d 

6 E x h i b i t 12-3, and I presented my own map at t h a t hearing, 

7 and they were awarded compulsory p o o l i n g . I b e l i e v e t h a t 

8 the a d d i t i o n a l data t h a t has been made a v a i l a b l e t o us by 

9 the Penny Pincher Number 1 v e r t i c a l w e l l and the 

10 associated e l e c t r o n i c l o g e s s e n t i a l l y confirms my e a r l i e r 

11 case and comments w i t h regard t o the Penny Pincher Number 

12 1, and I b e l i e v e t h a t t h a t i n e q u i t y i s greater than ever. 

13 Q. Mr. Scott, what i s Lynx's ownership i n the 

14 proposed p r o j e c t area? 

15 A. Well, we own i n t e r e s t i n both the n o r t h h a l f 

16 of Section 21, i f I r e c a l l , about 4 percent, and 

17 approximately 9 percent i n the south h a l f of 21, and 

18 represent a large group of partners t h a t e s s e n t i a l l y 

19 owned approximately 60 percent of the mineral leases i n 

2 0 the south h a l f of 21 i n the Bone Spring. 

21 Q. I f y o u ' l l t u r n t o what's been marked as Lynx 

22 E x h i b i t Number 1. Do you have t h a t i n f r o n t of you? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. I d e n t i f y and review t h a t f o r the Examiners. 

25 A. That i s a s t r u c t u r e map on the t h i r d Bone 
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1 Spring sand top and isopach sand contours on the second 

2 Bone Spring sand showing c r o s s - p l o t p o r o s i t y g r e a t e r than 

3 10 percent. 

4 Q. And I b e l i e v e you i d e n t i f i e d the Penny Pincher 

5 Number 1 and the proposed Penny Pincher Number 2, 3 and 

6 4? 

7 A. As we come west t o east across Section 21, the 

8 Penny Pincher Number 1 i s the westernmost w e l l . The 2 i s 

9 the next one t o the east. The 3 i s the next one t o the 

10 east. And the 4 i s the one on the f a r east side. 

11 Q. I f you would e x p l a i n , f i r s t of a l l , your 

12 s t r u c t u r a l contour l i n e s on the map here f o r the 

13 Examiners. 

14 A. The c o n t r o l p o i n t s , f o r example, one i n 

15 Section 28 t h a t i n d i c a t e s a minus 6,291, t h a t 

16 s u b s t a n t i a l l y i s s i m i l a r t o the s t r u c t u r a l contours 

17 provided by Cimarex on the second Bone Spring sand. 

18 I mapped on the t h i r d sand i n the area because 

19 I b e l i e v e t h a t t h a t ' s a l i t t l e more consistent p i c k 

20 a v a i l a b l e t o us. But those are s t r u c t u r a l l i n e s at the 

21 top of the t h i r d sand. The contour l i n e s t h a t are marked 

22 10, 20, 30, 40, 50, 60, are second sand isopach l i n e s 

23 based on c o n t r o l p o i n t s i n the area. 

24 Q. Do you g e n e r a l l y agree w i t h the s t r u c t u r e map 

2 5 provided by Cimarex? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. And what about t h e i r isopach map? 

3 A. Well, I s t r o n g l y disagree w i t h the isopach 

4 t h a t they've provided. A l o g on the Penny Pincher Number 

5 1 w e l l using c r o s s - p l o t --

6 MR. LARSON: Mr. Examiner, I obje c t t o any 

7 testimony about the l o g , and we request the o p p o r t u n i t y 

8 t o ask Mr. Scott about i t . 

9 EXAMINER BROOKS: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

10 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I'm not sure I understand 

11 the basis f o r the o b j e c t i o n t h a t they o b j e c t t o the l o g . 

12 MR. LARSON: I t ' s p r o p r i e t a r y i n f o r m a t i o n . 

13 EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I'm going t o 

14 o v e r r u l e the o b j e c t i o n . You may continue. You may 

15 proceed. Perhaps i t ' s a hearsay o b j e c t i o n , but t h a t ' s 

16 not admitted i n any case. We need t o get t h i s testimony 

17 on the record, and we can appraise i t s value. You may 

18 proceed. 

19 A. We provided a l o g s e c t i o n of the compensated 

2 0 neutron d e n s i t y l o g f o r the second Bone Spring sand i n 

21 the Penny Pincher Federal Number 1. I t ' s a l i t t l e l a r g e r 

22 scale of the one t h a t they provided. 

23 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) Mr. Scott, i f I can 

24 i n t e r r u p t you, i s t h a t marked as Lynx E x h i b i t Number 2? 

25 A. Correct. And t h a t l o g i n d i c a t e s neutron 
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1 d e n s i t y c r o s s - p l o t p o r o s i t y g r e a t e r than 10 percent, 

2 which i s a d m i t t e d l y somewhat perhaps more conservative 

3 than the Cimarex de n s i t y p o r o s i t y of 10 percent. That 

4 l o g i n d i c a t e s c r o s s - p l o t p o r o s i t y g r e a t e r than 10 percent 

5 of only e i g h t f e e t . 

6 I t would be my p r o f e s s i o n a l o p i n i o n t h a t 

7 Cimarex has, i n e f f e c t , d r i l l e d a dry v e r t i c a l hole t o 

8 the second Bone Spring sand at the Penny Pincher Number 

9 1. 

10 Q. Now, you say t h a t , even out of a l l f a i r n e s s , 

11 understanding t h a t t h a t was t h e i r p i l o t hole? 

12 A. Absol u t e l y . That w e l l would not be commercial 

13 i n t h a t 40-acre t r a c t as a v e r t i c a l w e l l i n the second 

14 Bone Spring sand. 

15 I can o f f e r some a d d i t i o n a l data w i t h regard 

16 t o a w e l l t h a t i s j u s t a northeast, o f f s e t t o the Penny 

17 Pincher 2, t h a t i s the subject of t h i s hearing. 

18 Marbob, w i t h me as a working i n t e r e s t , t e s t e d 

19 28 f e e t of d e n s i t y neutron c r o s s - p l o t p o r o s i t y g r e a t e r 

2 0 than 10 percent w i t h p e r f o r a t i o n and breakdown a c i d . The 

21 w e l l was noncommercial i n the second Bone Spring sand. 

22 The swab r e p o r t on day two, a f t e r recovering t u b i n g 

23 volume, was 500 f e e t of f l u i d e n t r y w i t h a skim of o i l on 

24 the f l u i d . 

25 The w e l l was plugged back t o h igher zones w i t h 
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1 no f u r t h e r s t i m u l a t i o n . That w e l l was very conveniently 

2 l e f t o f f t h e i r cross-sections, but i t i s , i n f a c t , the 

3 d i r e c t northeast o f f s e t t o the surface l o c a t i o n of the 

4 Penny Pincher Number 2. 

5 Q. Mr. Scott, were you present f o r Mr. Catalano's 

6 testimony t h i s morning? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Did you hear h i s testimony regarding why he 

9 d i d not use the Marbob Top D o l l a r Well i n h i s analysis? 

10 A. I am an engineer, not a g e o l o g i s t , and I tend 

11 t o b e l i e v e the datapoints t h a t are c l o s e r t o the spot 

12 where I'm considering d r i l l i n g a w e l l than those a mile 

13 and a h a l f d i s t a n t . That's why I consider the Top D o l l a r 

14 t o be a s i g n i f i c a n t data p o i n t . I t ' s a diagonal o f f s e t . 

15 Q. Let's go back t o your E x h i b i t Number 1, i f we 

16 could, f o r a moment. You i n d i c a t e d t h a t the Penny 

17 Pincher Number 1 i s shown i n Section 21, I believe? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. And I t h i n k you also i n d i c a t e d t h a t t h a t w e l l 

2 0 has been forc e pooled? 

21 A. Yes. Penny Pincher 1 was d r i l l e d pursuant t o 

22 a forc e p o o l i n g order or compulsory p o o l i n g order 

23 R-13228, which was issued on March the 18th a f t e r a 

24 hearing. 
25 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Examiner, I ' d ask you 
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t o take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e of Order R-13228. 

2 MR. LARSON: No o b j e c t i o n . 
j 

3 EXAMINER BROOKS: So n o t i c e d . j 

4 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) Mr. Scott, I have a copy j 

5 of t h a t order, and I can -- I have copies, i f anyone i s j 

6 i n t e r e s t e d . 

7 Would you review paragraph 11 on page 4 of ; 

8 t h a t order? | 

9 A. Well, I b e l i e v e t h a t t h i s i s a l e g i t i m a t e j 

10 statement. Few w e l l s were d r i l l e d i n the area. Control 

11 p o i n t s were sparse. But the D i v i s i o n deemed, a f t e r the 

12 hearing, t h a t Cimarex's t e c h n i c a l p r e s e n t a t i o n was the 

13 more convincing of the two presentations t h a t were 

14 o f f e r e d a t t h a t hearing. I 

15 Q. Mr. Scott, do you have in front of you what's \ 

16 been marked as Lynx E x h i b i t Number 3? j 

17 A. Yes, I do. That's t h e i r isopach map on the | 

18 second sand t h a t r e q u i r e d r e v i s i o n as a r e s u l t of the ! 

19 d r i l l i n g and loggi n g of the Penny Pincher Number 1. ' 

20 I ' d l i k e t o put also i n the record t h a t w h i l e 

21 my E x h i b i t 1 contains more d e t a i l than the map t h a t was j 

22 presented at that Number 1 compulsory pool hearing, it \ 

23 r e q u i r e d no r e v i s i o n w i t h regard t o Bone Spring sand 
i 

24 i 
thickness. 

| 25 Q. And on t h a t Lynx E x h i b i t Number 3, what was ( 
i 

i 
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1 the f e e t of pay t h a t was i n d i c a t e d by Cimarex i n t h a t 

2 former hearing? 

3 A. Greater than 75 f e e t through a l l f o u r 

4 q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r sections i n the west half/west h a l f . 

5 Q. I b e l i e v e you've t e s t i f i e d t o t h i s , but j u s t 

6 t o make i t c l e a r f o r the record, on your E x h i b i t Number 

7 2, how much f e e t of pay does t h a t l o g i n d i c a t e ? 

8 A. Eight. 

9 Q. I'm Sorry. Eight feet? 

10 A. Eight f e e t . 

11 EXAMINER WARNELL: What depth are you 

12 basing t h a t on? 

13 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) Mr. Scott, f o r the 

14 Examiners, i f you could show the depth. 

15 A. The sand i n question would be r i g h t across 

16 8,900 f e e t . 

17 EXAMINER WARNELL: Okay. 

18 Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry) Based on your review of 

19 E x h i b i t Number 1, E x h i b i t 2 and E x h i b i t 3, what i s your 

20 t e c h n i c a l o p i n i o n as t o the commerciality of the second 

21 Bone Spring i n the n o r t h h a l f of Section 21? 

22 A. A strong case can be made w i t h the best data 

23 t h a t ' s a v a i l a b l e , being the Penny Pincher 1 l o g and the 

24 Top D o l l a r t e s t , t h a t the n o r t h h a l f of Section 21 i s | 

I 
25 bar ren or ve ry n e a r l y bar ren of c r o s s - p l o t Bone Spr ing j 
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1 second sand p o r o s i t y g r e a t e r than 10 percent, and t h a t i s 

2 i s so shown on my isopach map. 

3 Q. Were you present t h i s morning f o r Mr. Swain's 

4 testimony? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. And I be l i e v e Mr. Swain t e s t i f i e d -- and I 

7 don't mean t o t r y t o c h a r a c t e r i z e h i s testimony -- t h a t 

8 he b e l i e v e d a l l f o u r q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r sections were 

9 prospective. Do you agree w i t h h i s testimony? 

10 A. The v e r t i c a l hole i n the Penny Pincher Number 

11 1 i s a dry hole. The v e r t i c a l hole i n the northeast of 

12 the northwest i s between the Penny Pincher Number 1 and 

13 the Top D o l l a r Number 1, which t e s t e d the second Bone 

14 Spring sand as noncommercial. 

15 I have t o be l i e v e t h a t there i s a strong 

16 t e c h n i c a l argument t o be made f o r t h a t q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r 

17 s e c t i o n t o also be barren or very n e a r l y so. 

18 Q. Mr. Scott, what o p i n i o n do you have i n terms 

19 of Cimarex's a p p l i c a t i o n f o r forced p o o l i n g i n t h i s 

20 nonstandard spacing u n i t , i f i t were granted, what e f f e c t 

21 would i t have on Lynx's c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

22 A. I can understand why Cimarex wants -- l o o k i n g 

23 at my map and the data a v a i l a b l e t o us, I can c e r t a i n l y 

24 understand why Cimarex i s wanting t o go n o r t h t o south 

25 w i t h t h i s h o r i z o n t a l , as opposed t o east t o west, because 
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1 i t appears as though the n o r t h h a l f may be ma r g i n a l l y 

2 prod u c t i v e , at best. 

3 But the f l i p side of t h a t i s the compulsory 

4 p o o l i n g order on the Number 1 w e l l pooled on a s t r a i g h t 

5 acreage basis. And t h a t i s an egregious infringement of 

6 c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s because i t does not appear from the 

7 t e c h n i c a l data t h a t those 40s are anywhere near 

8 comparable i n p r o d u c t i v i t y . 

9 Q. What i s your o p i n i o n on the D i v i s i o n g r a n t i n g 

10 the a p p l i c a t i o n t o form a nonstandard spacing u n i t i n 

11 t h i s case? 

12 A. The D i v i s i o n formed -- took f o u r 40-acre 

13 p r o r a t i o n u n i t s and formed a 160-acre nonstandard 

14 p r o r a t i o n u n i t u t i l i z i n g very l i m i t e d data t o a l l o c a t e 

15 production on a s t r a i g h t acreage basis. 

16 This i s more i n tune -- r a t h e r than the 

17 compulsory p o o l i n g s t a t u t e , i t i s more i n tune w i t h the 

18 u n i t i z a t i o n s t a t u t e s , where m u l t i p l e i n d i v i d u a l p r o r a t i o n 

19 u n i t s are combined t o form a s i n g l e u n i t . And, i n f a c t , 

20 the word " u n i t " was used several times i n the order t h a t 

21 was issued f o r the Penny Pincher Number 1. 

22 U n i t i z a t i o n s t a t u t e s do -- now, under 

23 compulsory p o o l i n g , there i s no p r o v i s i o n f o r a l l o c a t i o n 

24 of produc t i o n on any other than a s t r a i g h t acreage basis. 

25 Under u n i t i z a t i o n , the best a v a i l a b l e g e o l o g i c a l data i s 
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1 u t i l i z e d t o determine p a r t i c i p a t i o n f a c t o r s f o r each 

2 t r a c t . And i n t h i s case, t h a t i s c e r t a i n l y more 

3 a p p l i c a b l e than a l l o c a t i o n on s t r a i g h t acreage. 

4 Q. Mr. Scott, i n Case 14418, what d i d Lynx 

5 request i n terms of a l l o c a t i n g production? 

6 A. We asked f o r i n d i v i d u a l w e l l t e s t s . We asked 

7 f o r each separate i n t e r v a l t o be t e s t e d t o determine i t s 

8 t o t a l c o n t r i b u t i o n t o the h o r i z o n t a l w e l l . 

9 Q. How d i d the D i v i s i o n respond t o t h a t request? 

10 A. The D i v i s i o n found i n t h e i r order t h a t t h a t 

11 was not p r a c t i c a b l e . The Cimarex f o l k s s o r t of ad hoc 

12 estimated t h a t i n d i v i d u a l t e s t s along t h a t h o r i z o n t a l 

13 i n t e r v a l would cost somewhere on the order of a m i l l i o n 

14 d o l l a r s . 

15 Now, I dispute t h a t number, but I don't have 

16 any hard f a c t s t o dispute i t because I don't know t h a t 

17 i t ' s ever been done. But i t ' s p o s s i b l e , given my 

18 experience w i t h Cimarex as a very high-cost operator, 

19 t h a t they could spend the m i l l i o n d o l l a r s g e t t i n g those 

20 i n d i v i d u a l 40s t e s t e d . That i s a p o s s i b i l i t y t h a t I have 

21 t o conceive. 

22 There are other remedies t h a t might be 

23 a v a i l a b l e t o us. I mean, Cimarex has proposed f o u r w e l l s 

24 i n here. I f we set the surface l o c a t i o n of one of these 

25 i n the south h a l f and l o g i t , they can determine p o r o s i t y 
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1 f e e t of pay i n the south h a l f of the s e c t i o n and the 

2 n o r t h h a l f of the s e c t i o n at no a d d i t i o n a l cost, and 

3 a l l o c a t e on the basis of i n t e r p o l a t e d data between the 

4 p o i n t s t h a t are a v a i l a b l e t o us. 

5 I t ' s important f o r me t o note t h a t I stand t o 

6 lose here, p o s s i b l y e i t h e r way, because I own i n t e r e s t i n 

7 the n o r t h h a l f also. What I'm i n t e r e s t e d i n i s , win or 

8 lose, the most accurate a l l o c a t i o n t h a t we can come t o on 

9 these p r o j e c t s . 

10 Q. Mr. Scott, what you propose as an a l t e r n a t i v e 

11 here t h i s morning, do you recommend t h a t be a c o n d i t i o n 

12 of any order t h a t r e s u l t s i n t h i s case i f the a p p l i c a t i o n 

13 i s granted? 

14 A. Absol u t e l y . 

15 Q. Based on the i n f o r m a t i o n and the testimony 

16 t h a t you provided here today, what are your engineering 

17 conclusions? 

18 A. Well, my engineering conclusions are t h a t 

19 Cimarex's o r i g i n a l maps are inaccurate. They 

20 misrepresented what they found on the ground, and t h a t 

21 the maps t h a t I prepared f o r t h a t f i r s t hearing and t h a t 

22 are presented here c e r t a i n l y d i d not need t o be modified, 

23 other than t o add a d d i t i o n a l d e t a i l . And there's simply 

24 not a s u f f i c i e n t amount of data t o even reasonably ensure 

25 t h a t c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s are being p r o t e c t e d . 
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1 Q. With t h a t , I ' l l ask you t o put your p r a c t i c a l 

2 hat on and provide f o r the Examiners your summary of what 

3 a l t e r n a t i v e or o p t i o n you recommend be made a c o n d i t i o n 

4 of the order. 

5 A. Let's d r i l l a v e r t i c a l hole i n the south h a l f 

6 and l o g i t . 

7 Q. What cost do you estimate f o r t h a t option? 

8 A. None. They're going t o do t h a t anyway. Maybe 

9 some paperwork t o change the l o c a t i o n . 

10 Q. Mr. Scott, were Lynx E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 e i t h e r 

11 prepared by you or under your d i r e c t supervision? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Examiner, we move the 

14 admission i n t o evidence of Lynx E x h i b i t s 1 and 2. 

15 MR. LARSON: Same basis f o r my o b j e c t i o n 

16 on the p r o p r i e t a r y nature of the e x h i b i t . I object t o 

17 i t . I have no o b j e c t i o n t o E x h i b i t 1. 

18 EXAMINER BROOKS: I be l i e v e t h a t at t h i s 

19 p o i n t , any o b j e c t i o n i n p r o p r i e t a r y has been e f f e c t i v e l y 

20 waived by the use of t h i s l o g data i n p r e p a r a t i o n of 

21 evidence t h a t has been presented t o us at the instance of 

22 Cimarex, so I w i l l o v e r r u l e the o b j e c t i o n . 

23 MR. LARSON: Mr. Examiner, Cimarex d i d not 

24 release t h i s data. 

25 EXAMINER BROOKS: But c l e a r l y Mr. Catalano 
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1 used t h i s i n pr e p a r a t i o n of h i s e x h i b i t , and i t was 

2 furn i s h e d , apparently, t o Lynx. Perhaps i t was fu r n i s h e d 

3 t o Lynx under a p r o t e c t i v e order, although I d i d n ' t sign 

4 one. But anyway --

5 THE WITNESS: I can e x p l a i n , i f t h a t 

6 helps. 

7 EXAMINER BROOKS: I t probably would help 

8 f o r the record. 

9 THE WITNESS: Several people t h a t normally 

10 are i n my group of working i n t e r e s t owners, Mr. Examiner, 

11 p a r t i c i p a t e d i n t h i s w e l l and requested the t e c h n i c a l 

12 data t h a t they were e n t i t l e d t o w i t h t h a t p a r t i c i p a t i o n . 

13 They forwarded t h a t t o me f o r review f o r these a d d i t i o n a l 

14 p r o j e c t s t h a t have been proposed because they are 

15 considering p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n them also. 

16 EXAMINER BROOKS: Does anybody have any 

17 follow-up questions f o r Mr. Scott, i n view of h i s 

18 response t o my question? 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Brooks, I would j u s t 

20 add -- and I can't t e l l what p o r t i o n of the l o g -- but 

21 there was a p o r t i o n of the l o g t h a t Cimarex used i n i t ' s 

22 E x h i b i t Number 11. 

23 EXAMINER BROOKS: That i s what I thought. 

24 but I wasn't sure. 

25 Mr. Larson, d i d you have any questions t o ask 
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1 t h i s witness? 

2 MR. LARSON: Which p a r t i e s provided you 

3 w i t h t h i s information? 

4 THE WITNESS: Am I o b l i g a t e d t o say? 

5 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I t h i n k you have t o answer 

6 t h a t question. 

7 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yes, I be l i e v e you do. 

8 THE WITNESS: Mr. G i l Moutray provided 

9 t h a t . 

10 MR. LARSON: What company i s he associated 

11 with? 

12 THE WITNESS: Seven Rivers, Inc. 

13 MR. LARSON: Did Mr. Moutray t e l l you t h a t 

14 Cimarex gave him permission t o give the data t o you? 

15 THE WITNESS: He d i d not. 

16 MR. LARSON: That's a l l I have. 

17 EXAMINER BROOKS: I be l i e v e t h a t Mr. 

18 Scott's testimony e s t a b l i s h e s a f u r t h e r basis f o r waiver 

19 i n t h a t one of the owners of the a l l e g e d p r o p r i e t a r y 

20 i n f o r m a t i o n has, i n f a c t , made i t a v a i l a b l e t o a t h i r d 

21 p a r t y , so I w i l l again o v e r r u l e the o b j e c t i o n . Lynx 

22 E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 w i l l be admitted. 

23 ( E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 were admitted.) 

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: That concludes my d i r e c t 

25 examination of Mr. Scott. 
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1 EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Larson? 

2 MR. LARSON: Can I have about f i v e 

3 minutes? 

4 EXAMINER BROOKS: Let's take a 15-minute 

5 recess. 

6 (A recess was taken.) 

7 EXAMINER BROOKS: Are we ready t o resume? 

8 MR. LARSON: I am, Mr. Examiner. 

9 EXAMINER BROOKS: Back on the record i n 

10 Case Number 14480. I be l i e v e t h a t we had tendered Mr. 

11 Scott f o r cross-examination by Mr. Larson. 

12 MR. LARSON: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

13 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

14 BY MR. LARSON: 

15 Q. Good morning, Mr. Scott. What i s the basis 

16 f o r your use of a 10 percent c r o s s - p l o t p o r o s i t y c u t o f f , 

17 instead of Mr. Catalano's 10 percent d e n s i t y c u t o f f ? 

18 A. I t ' s a l i t t l e more conservative. And I have 

19 25 years of experience w i t h v e r t i c a l Bone Spring w e l l s i n i 

2 0 the area, and t h a t appears t o be a p r e t t y reasonable 

21 number. 

22 Q. I be l i e v e you mentioned t h a t you t e s t i f i e d i n 

23 Case 14418? j 
i 

24 A. Um-hum. | 

I 
25 Q. And d u r i n g t h a t case, Mr. Catalano a l so used a j 
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10 percent d e n s i t y c u t o f f ; d i d he not? 

2 A. I n reviewing t h a t documentation today, I do 

3 see t h a t he d i d . 

4 Q. Did you ob j e c t t o h i s use or disagree w i t h h i s 

5 use - -

6 A. I don't guess I r e a l i z e d t h a t he wanted t o 

7 d i s r e g a r d t h a t compensated neutron l o g data when -- i n 

8 t h a t f i r s t round of testimony, I guess I assumed t h a t he 

9 was using c r o s s - p l o t p o r o s i t y , apparently i n c o r r e c t l y . 

10 Q. Did he have the data back i n February, d u r i n g 

11 t h a t hearing? 

12 A. I d i d n ' t look at any logs back i n t h a t 

13 hearing. No, s i r . I b e l i e v e i t was noted on h i s 

14 e x h i b i t s , though, t h a t i t was d e n s i t y p o r o s i t y . 

15 Q. To your knowledge, had the w e l l been d r i l l e d 

16 before the hearing i n February? The v e r t i c a l w e l l . 

17 A. No. 

18 Q. So you'd agree w i t h me t h a t he d i d n ' t have 

19 t h a t data at t h a t time? 

20 A. I would agree. 

21 Q. To your knowledge, you don't r e c a l l 

22 disagreeing w i t h Mr. Catalano's use of the 10 percent 

23 d e n s i t y c u t o f f i n t h a t hearing? 

24 A. I don't r e c a l l disagreeing w i t h i t . 

25 Q. I'm going t o r e f e r you now t o -- I'm sor r y . 
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too much paper. I t ' s Cimarex E x h i b i t Number 10. 

2 I t ' s the isopach. The e x h i b i t number i s down i n the 

3 lower r i g h t - h a n d corner of the e x h i b i t . 

4 A. Got i t . 

5 Q. Okay. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the Federal 

6 Hanson Number 1 w e l l i n Section 20? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. And on Mr. Catalano's isopach e x h i b i t , he 

9 shows 3 6 as the number of pay on t h a t w e l l . Do you t h i n k 

10 t h a t ' s a reasonable number? 

11 A. My map had 34 f e e t , so he's c e r t a i n l y i n the 

12 b a l l p a r k 

13 Q. Are you aware t h a t t h a t v e r t i c a l w e l l produced 

14 100,000 b a r r e l s ? 

15 A. Yes . 

16 Q. So you reviewed t h a t data? 

17 A. Yes, I have. 

18 Q. And I ' d next r e f e r you t o Number 32 on E x h i b i t 

19 10 . 

20 A. Got i t . 

21 Q - And using the 10 percent d e n s i t y c u t o f f 

22 u t i l i z e d by Mr. Catalano --

23 A. I would have t o --

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Please wait u n t i l he's 

25 done. 
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1 THE WITNESS: Okay. 

2 Q. (By Mr. Larson) Using the 10 percent d e n s i t y 

3 c u t o f f u t i l i z e d by Mr. Catalano, do you t h i n k the 32 i s a 

4 reasonable number? 

5 A. Yes, I would. 

6 Q. And has Lynx or any of i t s p a r t n e r s submitted 

7 a permanent a p p l i c a t i o n t o d r i l l a w e l l i n the proposed 

8 p r o j e c t area? 

9 A. No. 

10 Q. Have you ever attempted t o d r i l l a well? 

11 A. I t ' s an area we have some i n t e r e s t i n . I have 

12 one w e l l immediately t o be d r i l l e d i n t h a t area. But 

13 we're t a k i n g a somewhat d i f f e r e n t approach w i t h regard t o 

14 p r e v e n t i o n of waste than are the f o l k s at Cimarex, i n 

15 t h a t we are not convinced t h a t the h o r i z o n t a l technology 

16 i s the panacea t h a t i t ' s being made out t o be. 

17 Q. When you say, "the area," do you mean the 

18 160-acre p r o j e c t area? 

19 A. No, no, not i n t h i s immediate v i c i n i t y . We're 

20 back t o the n o r t h and east. 

21 Q. I f I understand c o r r e c t l y , i f Cimarex's 

22 a p p l i c a t i o n i s granted, you would ask t h a t reserves be 

23 a l l o c a t e d based s o l e l y on each q u a r t e r section's 

24 c o n t r i b u t i o n , r a t h e r than acreage w i t h i n the p r o j e c t 

25 area? 
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A. What I'm asking f o r i s t h a t t h i s h o r i z o n t a l 

2 p r o j e c t a l l o c a t e the production t o each 40-acre p r o r a t i o n 

3 u n i t on the basis of the best a v a i l a b l e data t h a t ' s out 

4 there. 

5 Q. Okay. You wouldn't have i t based on 

6 production? You'd have i t based on a v a i l a b l e data now? 

7 A. Well, obviously i f we could get t e s t s of each 

8 

9 

i n d i v i d u a l 40, we'd base the a l l o c a t i o n on production. 

Q. And are you aware of any p r o v i s i o n i n the O i l 

10 and Gas Act t h a t would give the D i v i s i o n the a u t h o r i t y t o 

11 r e q u i r e t h a t k i n d of a l l o c a t i o n ? 

12 A. The u n i t i z a t i o n s t a t u t e does, i n f a c t , allow 

13 t h a t k i n d of a l l o c a t i o n . 

14 Q. Anything i n the D i v i s i o n ' s rules? 

15 A. I'm not an expert on the D i v i s i o n ' s r u l e s . 

16 Q. I understand you're not an at t o r n e y . Are you 

17 aware of any D i v i s i o n order t h a t ' s r e q u i r e d t h a t type of 

18 a l l o c a t i o n ? 

19 A. With regard t o u n i t i z a t i o n , yes. 

20 Q. With regard t o compulsory pooling? 

21 A. I'm not aware of any. 

22 Q. And I be l i e v e you t e s t i f i e d you had a -- i s i t 

23 a 60 percent l e g a l i n t e r e s t i n the south h a l f of the 

24 160-acre p r o j e c t area? 

25 A. No, s i r . People t h a t I would normally 
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1 represent have approximately a 6 0 percent i n t e r e s t . 

2 That's c o r r e c t . 

3 Q. Who you would normally represent? Could you 

4 e x p l a i n what you mean by that? 

5 A. I've been op e r a t i n g i n southeast New Mexico 

6 f o r 3 0 years now w i t h a group of l o c a l businessmen and 

7 independent producers t h a t I would normally consider my 

8 group. A la r g e number of these people are people t h a t I 

9 brought i n t o t h i s acreage p o s i t i o n and t h a t have been 

10 p a r t i c i p a t i n g w i t h me f o r -- since I've been i n business. 

11 Q. And have any of those people informed Cimarex 

12 t h a t they want t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h i s well? 

13 A. Yes. A couple of them. 

14 Q. Who's that ? 

15 A. I t h i n k Marbob d i d , Wes Perry, G i l Moutray. 

16 There may be a couple of others t h a t I'm not aware o f . 

17 Q. Do you know the percentage of t h e i r i n t e r e s t 

18 i n the south h a l f ? 

19 A. Generally i t would be very small. 

2 0 MR. LARSON: Pass the witness. 

21 EXAMINATION 

2 2 BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

23 Q. Okay. I don't know much about l o g 

24 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . F o r t u n a t e l y , I have a Technical Examiner 

25 who's an expert on i t . 
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1 But the d i f f e r e n c e between the 32 f e e t t h a t 

2 Mr. Catalano came up w i t h from the l o g data i n the 

3 v e r t i c a l p i l o t hole of the Penny Pincher Number 1 and the 

4 ei g h t f e e t t h a t you came up w i t h , I gather, i s a 

5 d i f f e r e n c e i n the method used t o i n t e r p r e t the logs; i s 

6 t h a t correct? 

7 A. That l o g t h a t you have i n f r o n t of you has two 

8 curves on i t , Mr. Examiner. 

9 Q. Okay. 

10 A. One curve i s the compensated neutron l o g . 

11 Q. Okay. Now --

12 A. And the neutron p o r o s i t y would be the dashed 

13 l i n e , according t o t h a t legend a t the bottom. 

14 Q. Now, you're r e f e r r i n g t o Lynx E x h i b i t Number 

15 2? 

16 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

17 Q. And the dashed l i n e -- i t looks t o me l i k e 

18 there's a dashed red l i n e t h a t goes up and down. 

19 A. No, no. We are over on the f a r ri g h t - h a n d 

20 side. There are three curves. 

21 Q. Yeah, I see the three curves. 

22 A. One of those i s --

23 Q. These are a l l blue; r i g h t ? No. Well, you're 

24 t a l k i n g about -- are you t a l k i n g about the three curves, 

25 the red one t h a t appears t o be r e a l s t r a i g h t , and then 
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1 the wavy red one and then the blue one? 

2 A. No, s i r . 

3 Q. Are you t a l k i n g about the three blue ones t h a t 

4 appear t o be --

5 A. There's a blue and a couple of blacks over on 

6 the f a r r i g h t - h a n d side. 

7 Q. They appear t o be i n t e r t w i n e d . They sometimes 

8 coincide and sometimes depart from --

9 A. That i s c o r r e c t . There are two d i f f e r e n t 

10 t o o l s measuring p o r o s i t y on those curves. And then the 

11 t h i r d curve i s the c r o s s - p l o t of those two t o o l s , which 

12 i s g e n e r a l l y accepted t o give a more accurate 

13 r e p r e s e n t a t i o n of the a c t u a l p o r o s i t y than e i t h e r of the 

14 t o o l s by themselves. 

15 Q. And the c r o s s - p l o t i s what you used t o develop 

16 your -- t o come up w i t h your f e e t of pay --

17 A. Yes, s i r . 

18 Q. -- conclusion? 

19 But you used the same c u t o f f , 10 percent 

20 p o r o s i t y c u t o f f ? 

21 A. That i s c o r r e c t , both i n the l a s t hearing and 

22 t h i s hearing and on a l l of the maps t h a t I've presented. 

23 Q. Did Mr. Catalano use only one of those 

24 t r a c e r s ? 

25 A. Tha t ' s c o r r e c t . He used the d e n s i t y curve 
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1 only, apparently. 

2 Q. And you b e l i e v e , I take i t , t h a t using the 

3 c r o s s - p l o t produces a more accurate r e s u l t ? 

4 A. Yes, I do. 

5 Q. Okay. Now, you r e f e r r e d t o a w e l l -- was i t 

6 the Top Dog or the Top Dollar? 

7 A. Top D o l l a r . 

8 Q. Okay. Looking at Mr. Catalano's Cimarex 

9 E x h i b i t Number 10, there are a couple of w e l l symbols up 

10 i n Section 16 t h a t are above -- you s a i d the Top D o l l a r 

11 was an o f f s e t t o the proposed Number 2; i s t h a t correct? 

12 A. Yes, s i r . I n f a c t , i t ' s the gas w e l l symbol 

13 immediately t o the l e f t of the 34 f o o t number on the 

14 e x h i b i t . 

15 Q. The 34 f o o t -- yeah. Okay. That's a l i t t l e 

16 ambiguous because there's several spots on here. I want 

17 t o be sure I know where I'm t a l k i n g about. 

18 I s i t i n the southeast of the southwest of 16, 

19 or i s i t i n the northeast of the -- I mean the southwest 

20 of the southeast? 

21 A. That's c o r r e c t , southwest/southeast of Section 

22 16 . 

23 Q. I t ' s i n the southwest of the southeast of 

24 Section 16. So t h a t would be the spot t h a t looks t o be 

25 south of the 34 number? 
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1 A. No, s i r . I b e l i e v e i t ' s the gas w e l l symbol 

2 immediately t o the l e f t of the 34. 

3 Q. I t ' s a c t u a l l y c l o s e r t o the 34 number than 

4 t h a t other spot is? 

5 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

6 Q. And the other one, i s t h a t the one t h a t the 34 

7 p l o t r e f e r s to? 

8 A. I'm not sure. I t h i n k t h a t ' s a shallow w e l l . 

9 I t might be a Delaware t e s t . I'm not p o s i t i v e . 

10 Q. Where i s the w e l l t h a t the 34 number applies 

11 to? 

12 A. I t ' s the gas w e l l symbol immediately t o the 

13 l e f t of the 34. 

14 Q. So t h a t 34 i s Mr. Catalano's p l o t f o r the Top 

15 D o l l a r well? 

16 A. I be l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

17 Q. What was your p l o t f o r the Top D o l l a r well? 

18 A. I t ' s 28. 

19 Q. So as f a r as the p o r o s i t y p l o t -- I mean the 

20 f e e t of pay p l o t , you weren't t h a t f a r o f f from Mr. 

21 Catalano on that? 

22 A. Well, those logs w i l l o c c a s i o n a l l y overlay. 

23 And when they do --

24 Q. I understand. And down t o 20, you were even 

25 closer? 
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1 A. Yes, s i r . I be l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

2 Q. But you were q u i t e f a r apart i n the Penny 

3 Pincher Number 1? 

4 A. That i s also c o r r e c t . 

5 Q. You sa i d the Top D o l l a r at 28 -- you p l o t t e d 

6 i t at 28, and you sa i d i t was not commercial? 

7 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

8 EXAMINER BROOKS: I t h i n k t h a t r e a l l y i s 

9 a l l the questions I have f o r you. I have some questions 

10 f o r your a t t o r n e y , but I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l the questions I 

11 have f o r you. Thank you. 

12 Mr. Warnell may have some questions. 

13 EXAMINATION 

14 BY EXAMINER WARNELL: 

15 Q. Let's go back again t o the l o g . 

16 A. Yes, s i r . 

17 Q. Around 8,900 feet? 

18 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

19 Q. That's the second Bone Spring sand t h a t ' s i n 

20 question here? 

21 A. Yes, s i r . The top of t h a t sand would be up 

22 there at approximately 8,734, and the base of the sand at 

23 9,146. 

24 Q. I n your v iew, what ' s causing t h a t crossover i n 

25 the d e n s i t y neutron? 
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1 A. Generally, t h a t i s i n t e r p r e t e d t o be the 

2 hydrocarbon e f f e c t . 

3 Q. Gas e f f e c t ? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. I f there was no gas there, s t r i c t l y o i l , then 

6 there wouldn't be a crossover e f f e c t and, indeed, you 

7 would normally expect --

8 A. Not e x a c t l y c o r r e c t , no. I've seen o i l sands 

9 w i t h crossover present also. I t ' s a f u n c t i o n of mud 

10 p r o p e r t i e s , the s e t t i n g s on the logging t o o l s . There are 

11 some other f a c t o r s t h a t go i n t o t h a t . 

12 Q. But normally, would you say t h a t neutron reads 

13 higher than the d e n s i t y i n an o i l - b e a r i n g sand? 

14 A. The neutron reads -- w e l l , a gas e f f e c t or 

15 hydrocarbon e f f e c t tends t o suppress the neutron l o g , 

16 thus c r e a t i n g the crossover. 

17 Q. So there are some o l d - t i m e r s out there t h a t I 

18 know t h a t probably don't r e l y t h a t much on c r o s s - p l o t 

19 p o r o s i t y because of t h a t negative gas e f f e c t on the 

20 neutron. So i t ' s not uncommon f o r some of the ol d - t i m e r s 

21 t o look at a d e n s i t y neutron and steer away from using 

22 c r o s s - p l o t p o r o s i t y and j u s t go w i t h the density? 

23 A. I guess the only answer t h a t I would have f o r 

24 t h a t i s f o r years we've had d e n s i t y logs a v a i l a b l e and 

25 we've had neutron logs a v a i l a b l e , and no one runs an 
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i n d i v i d u a l t o o l without running the other i n tandem. 

2 Cross-plot p o r o s i t y has proven t o be a very accurate 

3 p r e d i c t o r of being able t o produce a sand. And t h a t goes 

4 not o n l y f o r the Bone Spring, but the Delaware down t o 

5 Morrow 

6 Q I s t h a t the bottom of t h i s l o g , 9,150 and a 

7 l i t t l e b i t deeper? How would you i n t e r p r e t that? 

8 A Which i n t e r v a l are we t a l k i n g about here? 

9 Q At the bottom of the sand, 9,150. You see 

10 i t ' s a l o t t i g h t e r , but you've got a crossover. 

11 A Were they even l o g g i n g at t h a t p o int? 

12 Q I t looks l i k e t h e i r t o o l picked up way down 

13 there, about 9,200. 

14 A I would have no explanation. That's t y p i c a l l y 

15 a limestone bank, o c c a s i o n a l l y p r o d u c t i v e . 

16 Q Do you know i f t h i s l o g was run on a limestone 

17 m a t r i x or sandstone? 

18 A. Almost a l l of the logs i n t h i s area would be 

19 run on limestone matrixes. 

20 EXAMINER WARNELL: I have no f u r t h e r 

21 questions. 

22 EXAMINER BROOKS: Ms. Munds-Dry, do you 

23 have anything? 

24 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have no r e d i r e c t . 

25 EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Larson? 
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MR. LARSON: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

2 EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. The witness 

3 may stand down. 

4 Do you have a summation? 

5 MR. LARSON: A c t u a l l y , I ' d l i k e t o c a l l 

6 two r e b u t t a l witnesses. 

7 EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. C a l l your 

8 witness. 

9 MR. LARSON: F i r s t I ' d l i k e t o c a l l Mr. 

10 Compton. 

11 REBUTTAL EXAMINATION 

12 BY MR. LARSON: 

13 Q. Mr. Compton, on your d i r e c t I neglected t o ask 

14 you the percentage of the i n t e r e s t t h a t Cimarex has 

15 throughout t h i s 160-acre p r o j e c t area. And I ' d l i k e you 

16 t o s t a r t at the northernmost q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r s e c t i o n and 

17 work your way south and t e l l me the percentage of 

18 i n t e r e s t Cimarex has i n each q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r s e c t i o n . 

19 A. We c u r r e n t l y , as I s i t here, own 81 percent of 

20 the n o r t h e r n q u a r t e r . We own 81 percent of the quarter 

21 below t h a t . Moving i n t o the south h a l f , we own -- and 

22 the south h a l f i s a l l the same. The ownership i s the 

23 same throughout the h a l f s e c t i o n . We c u r r e n t l y own 8.2 

24 percent, which was assigned t o us by Marbob and EGL, and 

25 another 44 percent of the south h a l f have signed 
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1 o p e r a t i n g agreements. 

2 So as we s i t here today, 66.6 percent of the 

3 owners i n the spacing u n i t have committed t o the w e l l , 

4 and t h a t includes 52.2 percent of the south h a l f owners. 

5 Q. Kind of responding t o the Hearing Examiner's 

6 question e a r l i e r , what do you mean by "ownership"? 

7 A. The leasehold percentage ownership throughout 

8 the e n t i r e 160-acre spacing u n i t , c u r r e n t l y 66.6 percent 

9 of i t has been committed t o the w e l l , e i t h e r by term 

10 assignments d i r e c t l y t o us or by executing o p e r a t i n g 

11 agreements w i t h us, and t h a t i n clude 52.2 percent of the 

12 south h a l f . The biggest member of the south h a l f of t h a t 

13 member being the Bass Group, who owns 4 0 percent of the 

14 south h a l f . 

15 Q. And when you say, "the Bass Group," t h a t ' s a 

16 number of e n t i t i e s c o l l e c t i v e l y r e f e r r e d t o as the Bass 

17 Group? 

18 A. Yeah. They change names f a i r l y r e g u l a r l y . 

19 Q. B a s i c a l l y under the c o n t r o l of Bass? 

2 0 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

21 MR. LARSON: That's a l l I have, Mr. 

22 Examiner. 

23 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I have no ques t ions . 

24 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Just t o c l a r i f y , 

25 the percentages you 've j u s t g iven are gross work ing 
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1 i n t e r e s t percentages? 

2 THE WITNESS: That's c o r r e c t . 

3 EXAMINER BROOKS: That was my 

4 understanding. Thank you. 

5 MR. LARSON: I ' d l i k e t o c a l l Mr. Swain. 

6 REBUTTAL EXAMINATION 

7 BY MR. LARSON: 

8 Q. Mr. Swain, d i d you hear Mr. Scott's testimony 

9 t h a t i n h i s op i n i o n , the v e r t i c a l w e l l d r i l l e d on the 

10 west half/west h a l f of Section 21 i s a dry well? 

11 A. Yes, I d i d . 

12 Q. Do you agree w i t h t h a t ? 

13 A. No, I do not. 

14 Q. Can you e x p l a i n why? 

15 A. I f you r e f e r back t o e x h i b i t -- the net 

16 p o r o s i t y isopach. 

17 Q. E x h i b i t 10? 

18 A. Yes, s i r . 

19 Q. -- you can see the Federal Hanson Well t o the 

2 0 southwest, which has approximately 3 6 f e e t of pay and 

21 produced 100,000 b a r r e l s . And you can see how the Penny 

22 Pincher Number 1 l o c a t i o n has 32 f e e t of pay, using a 10 

23 percent d e n s i t y c u t o f f , which i s -- fo u r f e e t of pay 

24 between the two w e l l s i s almost i d e n t i c a l . 

25 I n my estimate, t h i s v e r t i c a l l o c a t i o n should 
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1 be able t o produce almost as much o i l as the v e r t i c a l 1 

2 l o c a t i o n of the Hanson Federal. 

3 Q. That's Number 3 6 i n Section 20? j 

4 A. Yes, s i r . 

5 Q. And d i d you t e s t i f y i n Case 14418, which | 

6 addressed the west half/west h a l f as a p r o j e c t area, t h a t 

7 the reserves were b a s i c a l l y i d e n t i c a l i n each j 

8 q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r s e c t i o n of the 160 acres? j 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. As you s i t here today, has t h a t o p i n i o n 

11 changed? 

12 A. No, s i r , i t has not. 

13 Q. So based on t h i s subsequently acquired l o g , 

14 you s t i l l b e l i e v e t h a t the reserves are f u n c t i o n a l l y 

15 equivalent i n each of those 40-acre sections? 

16 A. Based on the data today, yes, I do. j 

17 MR. LARSON: Pass the witness. 

18 EXAMINER BROOKS: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

19 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I j u s t have one or two 

20 questions. 

21 EXAMINATION 

22 BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: | 

23 Q. Mr. Swain, I b e l i e v e you j u s t t e s t i f i e d t h a t 

24 t h a t Hanson Well i n Section 20 has produced 100,000 

25 b a r r e l s ? 
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1 A. 98,000 b a r r e l s . 

2 Q. Roughly speaking? 

3 A. Yes, ma'am. 

4 Q. For the Penny Pincher Number 1, you also 

5 t e s t i f i e d , I b e l i e v e , t h a t you are now e s t i m a t i n g 32 f e e t 

6 of pay i n t h a t well? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. And how many b a r r e l s of o i l f o r the Penny 

9 Pincher Number 1 are you e s t i m a t i n g per q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r 

10 s e c t i o n w i l l be produced? 

11 A. I t ' s hard t o p r e d i c t , u n t i l the w e l l i s 

12 a c t u a l l y d r i l l e d and completed, how much they a c t u a l l y 

13 w i l l produce. 

14 Q. Do you r e c a l l the testimony i n Case 14418? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. And at t h a t time, how much o i l was being 

17 p r e d i c t e d per q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r s e c t i o n would be produced? 

18 A. Around 75,000 b a r r e l s per q u a r t e r / q u a r t e r . 

19 Q. You're saying at 3 6 f e e t of pay, the Federal 

20 Hanson produced 100,000, but i n the Penny Pincher Number 

21 1, at the time you p r e d i c t e d 74,000 w i t h 32 f e e t of pay? 

22 A. Yes, I d i d . 

23 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. No f u r t h e r 

24 ques t ions . 

25 EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. W a r n e l l , do you have 
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1 any questions? 

2 EXAMINATION 1 

3 BY EXAMINER WARNELL: j 

4 Q. Mr. Swain, I would be curious -- there seems j 

5 to be a b i t of a discrepancy between you and Mr. Scott on 

6 the p o r o s i t y , whether i t ' s d e n s i t y or c r o s s - p l o t 1 
t 

7 p o r o s i t y . Do you have any comments on that? | 

8 A. Yes, s i r . I n our experience of d r i l l i n g 15 | 

9 second Bone Spring h o r i z o n t a l s and studying the other 35, 

10 plus second Bone Spring h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s d r i l l e d i n 

11 southeast New Mexico, and using extensive core data t h a t 

12 we have acquired i n other areas, a 10 percent d e n s i t y j 

13 c u t o f f i s a conservative i n d i c a t o r of p o r o s i t y . Our 

14 an a l y s i s t o date shows somewhere around an 8 t o a 9 j 

15 percent d e n s i t y c u t o f f i s probably the best p o r o s i t y i 

16 c u t o f f f o r t h i s sandstone i n t h i s area. 

17 Q. Do you have core data on the Number 1 well? 

18 A. No, s i r , we d i d not get core data on the j 

19 1 
Number 1. I have core data on offset wells in the same \ 

1 20 1 
formation, the same second Bone Spring sand. j 

21 Q. That core p o r o s i t y i s p r e t t y much i n l i n e w i t h j 

22 d e n s i t y p o r o s i t y ? j 

23 A. Yes, s i r . We have o i l s a t u r a t i o n s and 

24 s u f f i c i e n t perm i n core plugs w i t h d e n s i t y p o r o s i t i e s as ! 

25 low as 8 percent t o produce hydrocarbons. i 

i 
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1 EXAMINER WARNELL: I don't have any other 

2 questions. Thank you. 

3 EXAMINER BROOKS: Ms. Munds-Dry, do you 

4 have any -- w e l l , i t ' s your witness. Do you have 

5 anything --

6 MR. LARSON: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

7 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Did you have 

8 anything i n l i g h t of Mr. Warnell's questions? 

9 MS. MUNDS-DRY: No, s i r . 

10 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. You may step 

11 down. 

12 Now do you want t o present a closing? 

13 MR. LARSON: A b r i e f c l o s i n g , 

14 Mr. Examiner. 

15 EXAMINER BROOKS: Go ahead. 

16 MR. LARSON: Based on the evidence 

17 presented d u r i n g today's hearing, I would submit t h a t 

18 Cimarex has met i t s burden of proof, e s t a b l i s h i n g i t s 

19 e n t i t l e m e n t t o a l l of the r e l i e f requested i n t h i s 

20 a p p l i c a t i o n . 

21 I would f u r t h e r s t a t e t h a t there i s no basis 

22 i n any s t a t u t o r y or r e g u l a t o r y p r o v i s i o n f o r Mr. Scott's 

23 recommendation t h a t the a l l o c a t i o n of reserves be done on 

24 a percentage of ownership basis, r a t h e r than an acreage 

25 basis. 
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1 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Ms. Munds-Dry, 

2 before you respond -- I assume you want t o respond. 

3 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Yes. 

4 EXAMINER BROOKS: Before you respond, I am 

5 very concerned - about the question i f you are urg i n g , as 

6 Mr. Scott d i d on the stand and as he d i d i n the previous 

7 case, t h a t the D i v i s i o n consider, i n the event t h a t i t 

8 does issue a compulsory p o o l i n g order i n t h i s case, 

9 or d e r i n g the d i s t r i b u t i o n of product i o n i n a method other 

10 than an acreage basis, I ' d be very concerned about 

11 whether the D i v i s i o n would have the a u t h o r i t y t o do t h a t . 

12 So w i t h t h a t , I ' l l l e t you respond. 

13 MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Brooks, I've been 

14 s i t t i n g here t h i n k i n g about what I would say i n c l o s i n g , 

15 and I ' l l respond t o your question b r i e f l y . But I t h i n k 

16 i t might be h e l p f u l i f you would allow us t o submit 

17 w r i t t e n c l o s i n g statements, because we are dea l i n g w i t h 

18 some f a i r l y d e t a i l e d l e g a l p o s i t i o n s . 

19 EXAMINER BROOKS: I bel i e v e t h a t ' s 

20 c o r r e c t , t h a t we're hearing i n t r i c a t e l e g a l issues. 

21 Would there be any o b j e c t i o n t o Ms. Munds-Dry 

22 s u b m i t t i n g her c l o s i n g i n w r i t i n g ? 

23 MR. LARSON: I would have no o b j e c t i o n , i f 

24 I have the o p p o r t u n i t y t o respond i n w r i t i n g . 

25 EXAMINER BROOKS: You would have t h a t 
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1 o p p o r t u n i t y . I f you wish t o submit something i n w r i t i n g 

2 post-hearing, t h a t ' s f i n e . 

3 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I ' l l j u s t say b r i e f l y t h a t 

4 i t has been Lynx's p o s i t i o n , not only i n the previous 

5 case but i n t h i s case, t h a t the p o o l i n g s t a t u t e addresses 

6 p o o l i n g f o r a spacing u n i t and not a p r o j e c t area, and 

7 t h a t i s where we go f a r a f i e l d . Because f o r whatever 

8 reason, the D i v i s i o n has allowed the formation of a 

9 nonstandard spacing u n i t , r a t h e r than a v o l u n t a r y u n i t or 

10 some other mechanism, t h a t would allow f o r appropriate 

11 a l l o c a t i o n of production. 

12 And we do not b e l i e v e there i s a basis f o r 

13 p o o l i n g i f the a p p l i c a n t cannot prove t h a t i t would 

14 p r o t e c t c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s and would prevent the waste of 

15 o i l and gas, and we be l i e v e t h a t has not been met i n t h i s 

16 case. 

17 EXAMINER BROOKS: Obviously I don't 

18 disagree t h a t t h a t ' s a requirement f o r p o o l i n g , but go 

19 ahead. 

20 MS. MUNDS-DRY: I would j u s t say t h a t the 

21 a l t e r n a t i v e t h a t Mr. Scott has presented today i n terms 

22 of d r i l l i n g a v e r t i c a l w e l l and loggi n g i t and 

23 i n t e r p o l a t i n g the data, as he suggested, which would be 

24 at no cost, as he t e s t i f i e d , t o Cimarex, adding t h a t 
25 c o n d i t i o n would p r o t e c t c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , which we 
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1 b e l i e v e the D i v i s i o n has t h a t duty t o do. 

2 I n the previous hearing, as you may r e c a l l , 

3 the reason why Mr. Scott brought up the $1 m i l l i o n f i g u r e 

4 was because i n t h a t D i v i s i o n order i t was i n d i c a t e d t h a t 

5 t h a t would be a waste issue by being r e q u i r e d t o spend 

6 t h a t much more money. 

7 Now, Mr. Scott i s requesting something t h a t 

8 w i l l be no e x t r a cost and t h a t could not, t h e r e f o r e , be 

9 considered a waste issue. 

10 That's, i n very b r i e f summary, why we t h i n k 

11 there's a basis f o r d e n i a l of t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n . 

12 EXAMINER BROOKS: I n terms of the powers 

13 of the D i v i s i o n , I assume you would comment i n your 

14 w r i t t e n remarks on the impact of the Rut t e r & Willbanks. 

15 MS. MUNDS-DRY: As you l i k e t o r e f e r t o as 

16 the B a r t l e s and Jaymes case. 

17 EXAMINER BROOKS: That's one of the 

18 reasons I took a recess, was t o check and be sure I was 

19 c a l l i n g the case c o r r e c t l y . Okay. I f there's nothing 

20 f u r t h e r , then Case Number 14480 w i l l be taken under 

21 advisement. 

22 * * * 

23 
! <i© hereby canlfy that Hie foregoing is 

24 a #ompl*!e reco rd ofthe proceedings in 
Ihe Examiner hearing cf Case No. . 

25 heard by me on 

, exam.'ner 
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